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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013

Directors of the company
The directors who held office during the year were as follows

T Freyman

M Smuth

C Soenderby (resigned 1 January 2013)
5 Hudson

Business review

Fair review of the business
The profit after tax for the period was £1,446,000 (2012 £2,646,00)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The company has significant financial resources which are subject to mterest rate nsk The directors believe that
the company 1s well placed to manage 1its business nisk successfully despite the current uncertain economic
outlook

Strategic report
Advantage has been taken of the exemption under section 414B of the companies Act 2006 from the
requirement to prepare a strategic report

Directors' habihities

The company has made quahifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the year and remain 1n force at the date of this report

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the company auditor 1s aware of that information The
directors confirm that there 1s no relevant information that they know of and which they know the auditor 1s
unaware of

Reappomntment of auditor
The current auditor, Deloitte LLP, have expressed a wish to resign after the completion of the 2013 audit The
Directors expect to appoint Ernst & Young LLP to fill the casual vacancy
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

....... . continued

Small company provisions
This report has been prepared in accordance with the small companies regime under the Companies Act 2006

Approved by the Board on l 3/§/l4 and signed on 1ts behalf by

[

K Gogay
Company secreta
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, Directors' Report and the financial statements 1n
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company
law the directors must not approve the financiat statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

= select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
* make judgements and accounting estumates that are reasonable and prudent, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate 1o presume that the
company will continue 1n busimess

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other wregularities

Page 3




Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott (UK) Finance Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Abbott (UK) Finance Limited for the year ended 31 December
2013, set out on pages 6 to 11 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet and related notes
1 to 11 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards {Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them n an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities {set out on page 3), the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimeon on the financial statements 1n accerdance with
apphicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information n the Annual Report and Financial Statements to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to ideatify any information that 1s
apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the imphcations for our report

Opimien on the financial statements
In our opmion the financial statements

= give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its profit for the
year then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
and

+ have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Abbott (UK) Finance Limited

enuneess COMLINUEd

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, 1n our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

« the financial statements are not (n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

» the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a
strategic report or in in preparing the directors report

/f/%—n./L/

Richard Muschamp {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloutte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

Date 18/?/14
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Abbeott (UK) Finance Limited
Profit and Loss Account for the
Year Ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

Note £ 000 £ 000
Turnover - -
Operating profit/(loss) - -
Other nterest receivable and similar income 3 1,446 2,646
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,446 2,646
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 5 - .
Profit for the financial year 8 1,446 2,646

Turnover and operating profit derive wholly from continuing operations

The company has no recognised gains or losses for the year other than the results above

The notes on pages 8 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
(Registration number: 03949843)
Balance Sheet at 31 December 2013

2013 2012

Note £ 000 £ 000
Current assets
Debtors 6 185,986 56,238
Debtors - over 1 yr 6 - 128,302
Net assets 185,986 184,540
Share capital and reserves
Called up share capital 7 - -
Other reserves 8 108,000 108,000
Profit and loss account 8 77,986 76,540
Shareholders' funds 9 185,986 184,540

These accounts have been prepared 1n accordance with the provisions applicable to companies subject to the
small companies regime
Approved and authonsed for 1ssue by the Board on ,8/ 9/ 14 and signed on 1ts behalf by

7/

M Smut
Director

The notes on pages 8 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Accounting pohcies

A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the
period and the preceding year 1s as follows -

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and have been prepared in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards

The company 1s exempt from preparing a cash flow statement as 90% or more of the voting nights are held
within the group

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a reascnable expectation that the company has adequate resources to
continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting 1n preparing the annual report and accounts

Taxation
UK corporation tax 15 provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substanttally enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all tming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date Tiumng differences are differences between the company's taxable profits and its results as stated in
the accounts that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses 1n tax assessments in periods different from those
mn which they are recognised n the accounts A net deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed as recoverable only when, on
the basis of available evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be surtable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying iming differences can be deducted

Interest Income

Interest income 1s due to the company on cash deposits with affihated compames or third party banks Interest
income 1s calculated on a daily basis and accrued monthly

Auditor remuneration

Auditor's remuneration of £4,000 (2012 £4,000) 1s borne by the immediate parent company, Abbott (UK)
Holdings Limited

Other interest recervable and similar income

2013 2012
£ 000 £ 000
Interest from group companies 1,446 2,646
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Abbott {UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

verounons continued

4 Staff costs

During the current period and prior year all the directors were paid by other affiliates within the Abbott
Laboratories group of compames They received no emoluments from the company The company has no other
employees

5 Taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2013 2012
£ 000 £000

Total current tax - -

Factors affecting current tax charge for the year

Tax on profit on ordmary activities for the year 1s lower than (2012 - lower than) the standard rate of

carporation tax in the UK of 23 25% (2012 - 24 5%}

The differences are reconciled below }
2013 2012 !
£ 000 £000

Profit on ordinary activittes before taxation 1,446 2,646 ‘

|

Corporation tax at standard rate 336 648

Group relief - losses surrendered from affihated compantes (336) (648)

Total current tax - .
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

veneeenee COREINMEd

6 Debtors
2013 2012
£ 000 £ 000
Amounts owed by group undertakings 185,986 184,540
Debtors includes £ml (2012 - £128,302,000) receivable after more than one year
7 Called up Share capital
Allotted, 1ssued and unpmd
2013 2012
£ 000 £ 000
100 ordinary shares of £1 each - -
8 Reserves
Other Profit and
reserves loss account Total
£000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 January 2013 108,000 76,540 184,540
Profit for the year - 1,446 1,446
At 31 December 2013 108,000 77,986 185,986
9 Reconcihation of movement in shareholders funds
2013 2012
£000 £ 0040
Profit attributable to the members of the company 1,446 2,646
Net addition to shareholders' funds 1,446 2,646
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 184,540 181,894
Shareholders' funds at 31 December 185,986 184,540

10 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 "Related Party Disclosures” from disclosing
transactions with other members of the group
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Abbott (UK) Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

sesenssee CORtINMEd

11 Control

The company 1s controlled by the immediate parent company Abbott (UK) Holdings Limited The smallest and
largest group nto which the results of Abbott (UK) Finance Limited are consolidated 1s the ultmate parent
company Abbott Laboratories, incorporated in the State of Illinois, USA The consolidated financial statements
are available to the pubhc and may be obtained from Abbott Laboratories, 100 Abbott Park Road, Abbatt Park,
1L60064-6400, USA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS 1

(in muthons except per share data)
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ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPORT
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Year Ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
Net Sales $21,848 $21,494 $21,407
Cost of products sold 10,040 9,817 10,017
Amortization of intangble assets 791 795 884
Research and development 1,452 1,544 1,512
Selling, general and administrative 6,936 7,444 7,365
Total Operating Cost and Expenses 19,219 19,600 19,778
Operating Earnings 2,629 1,894 1,629
Interest expense 157 347 359
Interest income (67) 59 {65)
Net loss on extinguishment of debt - 1,351 —
Net foreign exchange {(gain) loss 50 (25) (20)
Other (income) expense, net (32) (25) 119
Earmings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes 2,521 305 1,236
Taxes on Earnings from Continuing Operations 138 (274) 110
Earnings from Continuing Operations 2,383 579 1,126
Earmings from Discontinued Operations, net of tax 193 5,384 3,602
Net Earnings $ 2,576 $ 5,963 $ 4,728
Basic Earnmgs Per Common Share —

Continuing Operations $ 152 $ 036 $ 072
Discontinued Operations 012 340 23
Net Earnings $ 164 $ 376 $ 303
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share —

Continuing Operations $ 150 $ 036 $§ 072
Discontinued Operations 012 336 229
Net Earmings ¥ 162 $ 372 $ 30!
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding Used for

Basic Earnings Per Common Share 1,558 1,575 1,557
Dilutive Common Stock Oprions and Awards 16 17 10
Average Number of Common Shares Qutstanding

Plus Dilutive Common Stock Options and Awards 1,574 1,592 1,567
Outstanding Common Stock Options Having No Dilutive Effect 1 1 27

The accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPCRT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in milhons)

Year Ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
Net Earnings $ 2,576 $ 5,963 $ 4,728
Less Earnings from Discontinued Operations, net of tax 193 5,384 3,602
Earmngs from Continuing Operations 2,383 579 1,126
Foreign currency translation (loss) adjustments (239) (181) (523)
Net actuanal gains (Qosses) and prior service (cost) and credits and amortization of

net actuarial (losses) and prior service (cost) and credits,

net of taxes of $393 1n 2013, $(253) 1n 2012 and $(380) 1n 2011 882 (715) (503)
Unrealized (losses) gamns on marketable equity securities,

net of taxes of $(10) 1n 2013, $11 1n 2012 and $(1)} 1n 2011 {18) 19 [@))]
Net adjustments for dervative instruments designated as cash flow hedges,

net of taxes of ${13) 1n 2013, $(21) 1n 2012 and $28 in 2011 (53) (91) m
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 572 {968) (9017)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 2,955 (389) 209
Comprehensive Income from Discontinued Operations 193 5,355 3,289
Comprehensive Income % 3,148 $ 4,966 $ 3,498
Supplemental Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Information,

net of tax as of December 31

Cumulative foreign currency translation loss adjustments $ (718) s (79 $ (72)
Net actuarial (losses) and prior service (cost) and credits (1,312) (3,596) (2,731)
Cumulative unreahzed gains on marketable equity securities 13 31 38
Cumulative gains on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges 5 50 168

The accompanying notes to cansohdated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(in rmiflsons)

ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

Year Ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
Cash Fiow From {Used 1) Operating Activities

Net earnings $ 2,576 $ 5963 $4,728
Adjustments to reconcile earnings to net cash from operating activities —

Depreciation 928 1,363 1,395
Amoruzation of intangible assets 791 1,419 1,649
Share-based compensation 262 433 383
Acquired in-process and collaborations research and development - 288 672
Investing and financing (gains) losses, net 4 356 142
Net loss on extinguishment of debt - 1,351 -
Trade receivables (113) 36 (670)
Inventories (154) (417) (130)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 131 (35) 413
Trade accounts payable and other Labilities (436} (134) 1,790
Income taxes {665) (1,309) (1,402)
Net Cash From Operating Activities 3,324 9,314 8,970
Cash Flow From (Used in) Investing Activities

Acquisitions of property and equipment (1,145) (1,795) {1,491)
Acquisitions of businesses and technologies, net of cash acquired (580) (706) (273)
Purchases of investment securities {10,064) (11,998) (5,110)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 7.839 8,936 5,649
Release of restricted funds - - 1,870
Other 21 3 16
Net Cash (Used 1n) From Investing Activities (3,929) (5,560) 661
Cash Flow From (Used 1n) Financing Activities

Proceeds from 1ssuance of (repayments of) short-term debt and other 2,086 784 {1,965)
Proceeds from wssuance of long-term debt and debt with matunities over 3 months 9 14,700 1,000
Repayments of long-term debt and debt with maturities over 3 months (303) (11,071} (3,012)
Acqmsition and contingent consideration payments related to business acquisitions  {(495) (521) (400)
Transfer of cash and cash equivalents to AbbVie Inc (5,901) - -
Purchases of common shares (1,605) (2,364) 77
Proceeds from stock options exercised, mcluding income tax benefit 395 1,850 269
Dividends paid (882) (3,183) (2,938)
Net Cash (Used 1n) From Financing Activities (6,696) 195 (6,423)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (26) 40 (43)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (7.327) 3,989 3,165
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 10,802 6,813 3,648
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 3,475 $10,802 $ 6,813
Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Income taxes paid $ 1,039 $ 1,367 $ 1,782
Interest paid 148 576 545

The accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

{dollars in muthons)

December 31 2013 2012
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,475 $10,802
Investments, primarily bank time deposits and U § treasury bills 4,623 4,372
Trade recewvables, less allowances of —
2013 $312,2012 $406 3,986 7,613
Inventories
Fimished products 1,866 2,346
Work n process 349 629
Materials 478 818
Total inventories 2,693 3,793
Deferred income taxes 2,528 2,986
Other prepaid expenses and receivables 1,504 1,757
Current assets held for disposition 438 —
Total Currcnt Assets 19,247 31,323
Investments 119 274
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 502 605
Bualdings 2,994 4,259
Equipment 8,506 13,111
Construction in progress 368 954
12,870 18,929
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 6,965 10,866
Net Property and Equipment 5,905 8,063
Intangible Assets, net of amortization 5,735 8,588
Goodwill 9,772 15,774
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Assets 2,109 3,213
Non-current Assets Held for Disposition 66 —
$42,953 $67,235

36




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(dollars in miilions)

ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

December 31 2013 2012

Liabihties and Shareholders’ Investment

Current Liabihities

Short-term borrowings $ 3,164 $ 2,082

Trade accounts payable 1,026 1,797

Salartes, wages and commissions 906 1,428

Other accrued ltabilities 3,500 6,788

Dividends payable 341 221

Income taxes payable 175 655

Current portion of long-term debt 9 309

Current habilities held for disposition 386 -

Total Current Liabilities 9,507 13,280

Long-term Debt 3,388 18,085

Post-employment Obligations and Other Long-term Liabihities 4,784 9,057

Non-current Liabilities Held for Disposiion 7 -

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders’ Investment

Preferred shares, one dollar par value

Authonized — 1,000,000 shares, none 1ssued — —

Common shares, without par value

Authorized — 2,400,000,000 shares

Issued at stated capital amount —

Shares 2013 1,685,827,096, 2012 1,675,930,484 12,048 11,755

Common shares held in treasury, at cost —

Shares 2013 137,728,810, 2012 99,262,992 (6,844) (5,591)

Earnings employed in the business 21,979 24,151

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (2,012) (3,594)

Total Abbott Sharcholders’ Investment 25,171 26,721

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries 96 92

Total Shareholders’ Investment 25,267 26,813
$42,953 $67,235

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' INVESTMENT

(tn muflions except shares and per share data)

Year Ended December 31 2013 2012 201

Common Shares

Beginning of Year

Shares 2013 1,675,930,484, 2012 1,638,870,201, 2011 1,619,689,876 $ 11,755 $ 9,817 $ 8,745

Issued under incentive stock programs

Shares 2013 9,896,612, 2012 37,060,283, 2011 19,180,325 393 1,854 954

Share-based compensation 261 435 382

Issuance of restricted stock awards (381) (351) (264)
End of Year

Shares 2013 1,685,827,096, 2012 1,675,930,484, 2011 1,638,870,201 $12,048 $ 11,755 % 9817

Common Shares Held iz Treasury
Beginning of Year

Shares 2013 99,262,992, 2012 68,491,382, 2011 72,705,928 $ (5,591) $ (3,688) $ (3,917
Issued under incentive stock programs

Shares 2013 5,718,575, 2012 6,691,748, 2011 4,638,841 310 363 250
Purchased

Shares 2013 44,184,393, 2012 37,463,358, 2011 424,295 (1,56%) (2,2066) [¢]})
End of Year

Shares 2013 137,728,810, 2012 99,262,992, 2011 68,491,382 $(6,844) $ (5,591) $ (3,688)

Earnings Employed 1n the Business

Beginning of Year $ 24,151 $20,907 $ 19,216
Net earnings 2,576 5,963 4,728
Separation of AbbVie Inc (3,735) - -
Cash dividends declared on common shares

{per share — 2013 $0 64,2012 $167, 2011 $192) (1,002) (2,650) (3,012}
Effect of common and treasury share transactions 1) (69) (25)
End of Year $21,979 $ 24,151 $20,907

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Beginnmg of Year $(3,594) $ (2,597) $ (1,367)
Separatton of AbbVie Inc 1,010 - -

Other comprehensive income (loss)} 572 (997) (1,230)
End of Year $(2,012) $ (3,594) $ (2,597)

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidianies

Beginning of Year $ 92 $ 86 $ 88
Noncontrolling Interests’ share of income,

business combinations, net of distributions and share repurchases 4 6 (2)
End of Year $ 96 3 92 $ 86

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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NMOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Bustness — Abbott’s principal business is the discovery,
development, manufacture and sale of a broad ltne of health
care products

Changes it Presentation Due to Abbvie Separation — On January 1,
2013, Abbott completed the separation of AbbVie Inc, which was
formed to hold Abbott’s research-based proprietary pharmaceut-
cals business The histonical operating results of the research-based
proprietary pharmaceuticals business prior to separation are
excluded from Earnings from Continuing Operations and are
presented on the Earnings from Discontinued Operations line in
Abbow’s Consolidated Statement of Earmngs The assets, habilities,
and cash flows of the research-based proprietary pharmaceuticals
business are included 1n Abbott’s Consolidated Balance Sheet and
1ts Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for pertods prior to
January 1, 2013 See Note 2 for additional information

Basts of Consolidation and Change in Accounting Principle —

The consolidated financial statements include the acceunts of the
parent company and subsidiaries, after ebmination of intercompany
transactions Prior to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsid-
1anies were consolidated based on a fiscal year ended November 30
due to the ime needed to consolidate these subsidianies Effective
January 1, 2011, the one month lag in the consolidation of the
accounts of foreign subsidiaries was eliminated and the year-end of
foreign subsidianies was changed to December 31 Abbott believes
that the change 1n accounting principle related to the ehmination of
the one month reporung lag 1s preferable because it results in more
contemporaneous reporting of the results of foreign subsidiaries

In accordance with applicable accounting hterature, a change in
subsidiaries’ year-end 1s treated as a change in accounting principle
and requires retrospective apphication The impact of the change
was not material to the results of operations for the previously
reported annual and interim periods after January 1, 2009, and thus,
those results have not been revised A charge of $137 mullion was
recorded in 2011 to recognize the cumulative immaterial impacts to
2009 and 2010 of which $37 muillion 15 recogmzed in the results of
discontinued operations

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for 2012 and 2011 have
been appropriately revised to reflect acquisition and contingent
consideration payments related to certamn business acquisitions

as cash flow used m financing activities The amounts had been
previously reflected as cash flow used in investing activities

Use Of Estimates =The financial statements have been prepared

i accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
Unuted States and necessarily include amounts based on estimates
and assumptions by management Actual results could differ from
those amounts Sigmficant estimates include amounts for sales
rebates, ncome taxes, pension and other post-employment benefits,
valuation of intangible assets, hugation, derivative financial instru-
merits, and inventory and accounts recervable exposures

ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

Forewgn Currency Translation — The statements of earmngs of
foreign subsidianes whose functional currencies are other than

the U'S dollar are translated into US dollars using average
exchange rates for the period The net assets of foreign substdiartes
whose functional currencies are other than the U S dollar are trans-
lated into US dollars using exchange rates as of the balance sheet
date The US dollar effects that arise from translabng the net assets
of these subsidiaries at changing rates are recorded in the foreign
currency translation adjustment account, which 1s included 1in
equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) Transaction gains and losses are recorded 1n earmings and
were not significant for any of the periods presented

Revenue Recogrution — Revenue from product sales 1s recogmzed
upon passage of title and risk of loss te customers Provisions for
discounts, rebates and sales incentives to customers, and returns
and other adjustments are provided for 1n the period the related
sales are recorded Sales incentives to customers are not matenal
Historical data 1s readily available and rehable, and 1s used for
estimating the amount of the reduction n gross sales Revenue
from the launch of a new product, from an improved version of
an existing product, or for shipments in excess of a customer’s
normal requirements are recorded when the conditions noted
above are met In those situations, management records a returns
reserve for such revenue, if necessary In certain of Abbott’s
businesses, primanly within diagnostics and med:cal optics,
Abbott partictpates in selling arrangements that include mulaple
deliverables (e g, instruments, reagents, procedures, and service
agreements) Under these arrangements, Abbott recognizes reve-
nue upon delivery of the product or performance of the service
and allocates the revenue based on the relative selling price of
each deliverable, which 1s based primarily on vendor specific
objective evidence Sales of product rights for marketable products
are recorded as revenue upon disposition of the rights Revenue
from License of product rights, or for performance of research or
selling activities, 1s recorded over the periods earned

Income Taxes — Deferred mcome taxes are provided for the tax
effect of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilinies
and their reported amounts 1n the financial statements at the
enacted statutory rate to be in effect when the taxes are paid

US income taxes are provided on those earnings of foreign
subsidiaries which are intended to be renitted to the parent
company Deferred income taxes are not provided on undistrib-
uted earmings remnvested indefinitely 1n foreign subsidiaries as
working capital and plant and equipment Interest and penalties
on income tax obliganons are included 1n taxes on income
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ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPQRT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Earnings Per Share ~ Unvested restricted stock that contain
non-forfeitable rights to dividends are treated as participating
securities and are included in the computation of earmings per
share under the two-class method Under the two-class method,
net earnings are allocated between common shares and participat-
ing secunities Earnings from Continuing Operations allocated

to common shares 1 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $2 366 billion,

$575 mullion and $1 123 billion, respectively Net earnings
allocated to common shares in 2013, 2012 and 2011 were

$2 558 billion, $5 917 bilhon and $4 714 billion, respecuvely

Penston and Post-Employment Benefits — Abbott accrues for the
actuanally determined cost of pension and post-employment
benefits over the service attnibution pertods of the employees
Abbott must develop long-term assumptions, the most significant
of which are the health care cost trend rates, discount rates and
the expected return on plan assets Differences between the
expected long-term return on plan assets and the acrual return
are amortized over a five-year period Actuarial losses and gamns
are amortized over the remaining service attribution periods of
the employees under the corridor method

Fair Value Measurements — For assets and habilities that are
measured using quoted prices in active markets, total faur value

1s the pubhished market price per unit muluplied by the number
of umits held without consideration of transaction costs Assets
and habilities that are measured using sigmficant other observable
nputs are valued by reference to similar assets or habilities,
adjusted for contract restrictions and other terms specific to that
asset or hability For these items, a sigmificant portion of fair value
15 derived by reference to quored prices of similar assets or liabili-
ties 1n active markets For all remaining assets and habilities, fair
value 1s derived using a fair value model, such as a discounted cash
flow model or Black-Scholes model Purchased intangible asvets
are recorded at fair value The fair value of sigmificant purchased
intangible assets 15 based on independent appraisals Abbott uses
a discounted cash flow model to value intangible assets The
discounted cash flow model requires assumptions about the
timung and amount of future net cash flows, risk, the cost of
capital, terminal values and market participants Intangible assets,
goodwill and indefimte-lived intangible assets are reviewed for
impatrment at least on a quarterly and annual basis, respectively

Share-Bascd Compensatton — The value of stoek options and
restricted stock awards and units are amortized over their service
period, whtch could be shorter than the vesting period 1f an
employee 1s retirement eligihle, with a charge to compensation
expense

Litigation — Abbott accounts for liigatien losses 1n accordance
with FASB ASC No 450, “Contingencies” Under ASC No 450,
loss contingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at
management s best estimate of a loss, or when a best estimate
cannot be made, a minimum loss contingency amount is recorded
Legal fees are recorded as incurred

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments — Cash equivalents
consist of bank tume deposits and US treasury bills wath original
maturities of three months or less Investments in marketable
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equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are
recorded at fair value with any unrealized holding gains or losses,
net of tax, included in Accumulated other comprehensive iIncome
(loss) Investments 1n equity securities that are not traded on
public stock exchanges are recorded at cost Investments in debt
securities are classified as held-to-maturity, as management has
both the intent and ability te hold these securities to matunty, and
are reported at cost, net of any unamortized premuum or discount
Income relating to these securtties 1s reported as interest income

Abbott reviews the carrying value of investments each quarter

to determine whether an other than temporary decline 1n market
value exists Abbott considers factors affecting the investee,
factors affecting the industry the investee operates 1n and general
equity matket trends Abbott considers the length of time an
investment’s market value has been below carrying value and the
near-term prospects for recovery to carrying value When Abbott
determunes that an other than temporary dechne has occurred,
the mvestment 1s written down with a charge to Other (income)
expense, net

Trade Recervable Valuations — Accounts receivable are stated

at their net reahizable value The allowance against gross trade
receivables reflects the best estimate of probable losses inherent
in the receivables portfolio determined on the basis of historical
experience, specific allowances for known troubled accounts and
other currently available information Accounts recetvable are
charged off after all reasonable means to collect the full amount
(including htigation, where appropriate) have been exhausted

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
(first-in, first-out basis) or market Cost includes material and
CONVErson costs

Property and Equipment — Depreciation and amortization are
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets The following table shows estimated useful lives
of property and equipment

Classification Estimated Useful Lives
Butldmgs 10 to 50 years (average 27 years)

Equipment

3 to 20 years (average 11 years)

Product Liability — Abbott accrues for product hability claims
when it 1, probable that a hability has been incurred and the
amount of the habihty can be reasonably estmated based on
exwtnginformation The hiabilities are adjusted quarterly as
addstronal mformanon becomes avalable Recevables for insur-
ance recovertes for preduct hability clmms are recorded as assets,
on an undiscounted basis, when 1t 1s probable that a recovery

will be realized Product habuhty losses are self-insured

Research and Development Costs — Internal research and
development costs are expensed as incurred Chinical tnial costs
incurred by third parties are expensed as the contracted work

1s performed Where contingent milestone payments are due to
third parties under research and development arrangements, the
milestone payment obligations are expensed when the milestone
results are achieved



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Acquired In-Process and Collaborations Research and Development
(IPR&D) — The imual costs of nghts to IPR&D projects obtained
in an asset acquision are expensed as IPR&D unless the project
has an alternative future use These costs include initial payments
incurred prior to regulatery approval in connectton with research
and development collaboration agreements that provide rights

to develop, manufacture, market and/or sell pharmaceutical
products The fair value of IPR&D projects acquired in a business
combination are capitalized and accounted for as indefinite-lived
intangble assets

Concentration of Risk and Guarantees — Due to the nature of

1ts operations, Abbott 1s not subject to significant concentration
risks relating to customers, products or geographic locations
Governmental accounts n italy, Spamn, Greece and Portugal
accounted for 12 percent and 16 percent of total net trade recerv-
ables as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 respectively Product
warranties are not significant

Abbott has no matenial exposures to ofi-balance sheet arrange-
ments, no special purpose entities, nor activities, that include
non-exchange-traded contracts accounted for at fair value Abbott
has periodically entered into agreements in the ordinary course

of business, such as assignment of product rights, with other
companies, which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondarily
liable for obligations that Abbott was previously primanly liable
Since Abbott no longer maintains a business relationship with

the other parties, Abbott 1s unable to develop an estimate of the
maximum potential amount of future payments, 1f any, under
these obligations Based upon past experience, the likelihood of
payments under these agreements 1s remote Abbott periodically
acquires a business or product nghts in which Abbott agrees to
pay contingent consideration based on attaiming certain thresholds
or based on the occurrence of certain events

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements — In February 2013,
the FASB 1ssued a standard pertaining to the reporting of amounts
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income
(AOCI) The standard requires that an entity provide, by compo-
nent, information regarding the amounts reclassified out of AQCI
and the line items 10 the statement of operations to which the
amounts were reclassified This guidance 1s effective prospectively
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012 Abbort's
adoption of this guidance in the first quarter of 2013 did not have a
matenal impact on our results of operations or financial position

NOTE 7 —- SEPARATION OF ABBVIE INC

On November 28, 2012, Abbott’s board of directors declared

a spectal dividend distribution of all of the outstanding shares

of common stock of AbbVie Inc (AbbVie), the company formed
to hold Abbott's research-based proprietary pharmaceuticals
business For each Abbott common share held at the close of
business on December 12, 2012, Abbott sharcholders received
one share of AbbVie stock on January 1, 2013 Abbott has received
a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service that the separation
quahifies as a tax-free dismbunion to Abbott and its US shareholders
for US federal income tax purposes
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The historical operating results of the research-based proprietary
pharmaceuticals business prior to separation are excluded from
Earmings from Continuing Qperations and are presented on the
Earmings from Discontinued Operations line Discontinued
operations include the results of AbbVie's business except for
certain corporate overhead costs and certain costs associated
with transition services that will be provided by Abbott to AbbVie
Discontinued operations also includes other costs incurred by
Abbott to separate AbbVie as well as an allocation of interest
assuming a uniform ratio of conselidated debt to equity for all

of Abbott’s historical operations The assets, habilities, and cash
flows of the research-based proprietary pharmaceuticals business
are included in Abbott’s Consolidated Balance Sheet and 1ts
Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows for perieds prior to
January 1, 2013

The following s a summary of the assets and ltabilities transferred
to AbbVie as part of the separation on January 1, 2013

(in billions)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $59

Investments 22

Trade recervables, less allowances 3z

Inventories 07

Prepaid expenses, deferred income taxes, and

other current recervables 29

Net property and equipment 22

Intangible assets, net of amortization 23

Goodwill 61

Deferred income taxes and other assets 11
266

Luabiliies

Short-term borrowings 10

Trade accounts payable and other current habulities 52

I ong-term debt 146

Post-employment obligations deferred income taxes and

other long-term habiliies 31
239

Net Assets Transferred to AbbVie Inc $ 27

In addition, approximately $1 billion of accumulated other
comprehensive losses, net of iIncome taxes, primarily related
to the penston and other benefit plan net Liabilittes as well as
foretgn translation was transferred to AbbVie

in 2013, there are no operating results related to discontinued
operations other than a faverable adjustment to tax expense of
$193 nullion as a result of the resolution of various tax positions
related to AbbVie’s operations prior to separation Summarized
financial mformation for discontinued operations for 2012 and
2011 14 as follows

(n millions}

Year Ended December 31 2012 2041
Net sales $18,380 $17444
Farnings before taxes 5958 1963
Taxes on earmings 574 361
Net earmings 5,384 3602

4
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Abbott and AbbVie entered into transitional services agreements
prior to the separation pursuant to which Abbott and AbbVie are
providing various services to each other on an interim transitionat
basis Transition services may be provided for up to 24 months with
an option for a one-year extension by the reciprent Services being
provided by Abbott include certain information technology and
back office support Billings by Abbott under these transitional
services agreements are recorded as a reduction of the costs to
provide the respective service in the applicable expense category in
the Consolidated Statement of Earmings This transitional support
will enable AbbVie to establish its stand-alone processes for various
activities that were previously provided by Abbott and does not
constitute significant continuing support of AbbVie's operattons

For a small portion of AbbVie’s operations, the legal transfer of
AbbVie’s assets (net of habilities) did not occur wath the separa-
tion of AbbVie on January 1, 2013 due to the time required

to transfer marketing authonizations and other regulatory
requirements in each of these countries Under the terms of the
separation agreement with Abbott, AbbVie 15 subject to the risks
and enutled to the benefits generated by these operations and
assets The majority of these operations were transferred to
AbbVie in 2013 with the remainder transferring in 2014 These
assets and habilities have been presented as held for disposition
1n the Consolidated Balance Sheet At December 31, 2013, the
assets and liabilities held for disposition consist of inventories

of $243 mallion, trade accounts receivable of $163 mullion, other
current assets of $32 mulhion, equipment of $28 mulhon, other
assets of $38 mullion, trade accounts payable and accrued habilities
of $386 mullion and other habilities of $7 million Abbott’s obhiga-
tion to transfer the net assets held for disposition to AbbVie of
$111 mullion 18 included in Other accrued Liabilities

Abbott has retained all habilities for all Us federal and foreign
1HIcome taxes on income prior to the separation, as well as certain
non-income taxes attributable to AbbVie’s business AbbVie
generally will be liable for all other taxes attributable to its busi-
ness In connection with the separation, Abbott has adjusted its
employee stock compensation awards and separated 1ts defined
benefit programs for pensions and post-employment medical and
dental benefit plans See notes 8 and 12 for additional informacion
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NOTE 3 — SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATICN

Other (income) expense, net, for 2013 primanly relates to gains
from the sales of equity securiies The loss on the extinguishment
of debt of $1 35 bilhion 1n 2012 relates to the early redemption of
$77 billion of long-term notes The loss consists of the premiem
paid on the notes and the write off of deferred financing costs
totaling $1 83 billion and was partially offset by a gain of $479 mii-
lion related to the unwinding of interest rate swaps related

to a portion of the debt As discussed in Note 1, Other (income)
expense, net, for 2011 imcludes a charge of $100 nullion to recog-
nize the cumulative immatertal impacts to 2009 and 2010 relating
to the change in year end for foreign subsidianies

The detail of various balance sheet components s as follows

(n muillrons)

Long-term Investments 2013 2012
Equity securitics $ 9 $213
Other 26 51
Total 119 $274

The reduction in long-term investments from December 31, 2012
to December 31, 2013 15 due primanly to the separation of AbbVie
on January 1, 2013

(m mullions<)

Other Accrued Liabilites 2013 2012
Accrued rebates payable to government agencies $ 136 $1,020
Accrued other rebates (a) 220 1,079
All other (b) 3,144 4,689
Total $3,500 $6,788

(a) Accrued wholesaler chargeback rebates of approxemately $90 millon and $300 mullion ax
December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively are netted in trade recervables because Abbott s
customers are imvoiced at a higher catalog price but only remut to Abbott their contrace
price for the products The reducton in the chargeback rebates from December 31 2012
to December 31, 2013 15 pnmarily due to the separation of AbbVie on January 1 2013

(B) 2013 and 2012 includes acquasition consideration payable of approximately $400 million related
primanily te the acquisition of Prramal 1ealtheare Limited s 1ealtheare Solutions business
On millions)

Past-employment Obligations and
Other Long-term Liabilities 2013 2012
Defined benefit pension plans and

post-cmployment medical and

dental plans for stgmificant plans 41,818 $4,871
Deferred income taxes 466 710
All other {c) 2,500 3476
Total $4,784 $5,057

(¢} 2013 1ncludes $1 1 bilhion of grass unrecognized tax benefits as well as $70 million
of scquisinon consideration payable. 2012 inctudes $1 4 billion of gross unrccognized
tax bencfi aton payable of $385 mallion telated to the
acquisition of Piramal Healtheare Limited s Healtheare Soluhons business

as well as acc d
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NOTE 4 -~ ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of the changes in accumulated other comprehensive
income from continuing operation, net of income taxes, are as follows
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Cumulative Gains

Cumulative Net Actuanial Cumulatve on Derivative
Forcign Cureuncy Losscsand Prior  Unrcahzed Gains Instruments

Translation Service Costs on Markctable Designated as
(n mullions) Adjustments and Credits ~ Equaty Sccunities  Cash Flow Hedges Total
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ (79 $(3,596) $ 31 $ 50 $(3.594)
Separation of AbbVie (400) 1402 — 8 1010
Other comprehensive incame (loss) before reclassificanons (239) 77l 22 23) 531
Income {loss} amounts reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive income {a) - 111 (40) (30) 41
Net current period comprehensive income {loss) |
from continuing operations (239) 882 18) (53) 872 |
Balance at December 31, 2013 $(718) $(1,312) $13 $ 5 $(2012)

(a) Reclassified amounts for foreign curreney transtation are recorded in the Consohdeted Statement of Earnings as Net Foreign exchange loss (gaim} gains on marke table equity securitics |
are recorded 23 Other (income) expense and gaens/losses related 1o cash flow hedges are recorded as Cost of product sold Net actuarial losses and prior service cost 1s included as a component

of net peniodic benefit plan cost - see Note 12 for additianal infarmation

NOTE 5 ~ BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

In August 2013, Abbott acquired 100 percent of IDEV Technologres,
net of debt, for $310 nullion, in cash The acquisition of IDEV
Technologes expands Abbott’s endovascular portfoho The alioca-
tton of the fair value of the acquisition resulted 1n non-deductible
acquired in-process research and development of approximately
$170 milhion which 1s accounted for as an indefinite-lived intangible
asset until regulatory approval or discontinuatien, non-deductible
definite-lived intangible assets of approximately $66 nullion, non-
deductible goodwill of approximately $123 mullion and net deferred
tax lrabilities of $56 millien Acquired intangible assets consist of
developed technology and are being amortized over 11 years

In August 2013, Abbott acquired 100 percent of OptiMedica for
$260 mullion, in cash, plus additional payments up to $150 million
to be made upon completion of certain development, regulatory
and sales milestones The acquisition of OptiMedica provides
Abbott with an immediate entry point into the laser assisted
cataract surgery market The allocation of the fair value of the
acquisition resulted in non-deductible definite-lived intangible
assets of approximately $160 mullier, non-deductible acguired
in-process research and development of approximately $60 mil-
lion, which 15 accounted for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset
until regulatory approval or discontinuation, non-deductible
goodwill of approximately $151 million, net deferred tax habihities
of $70 milhon and contingent consideration of approximately
$70 mullion The fair value of the contingent consideration was
determined based on an imdependent appraisal Acquired intangi-
ble assets consist primarily of developed technology that 1< being
amortized over 18 years

The preliminary allocations of fair value of these acquisitions will
be finalized when valuations are completed Had the above acqui-
sitions taken place on January 1 of the previcus year, conschdated
net sales and income would not have been significantly different
from reported amounts

NOTE 6 — GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Abbott recorded goodwill of approximately $274 nullion in 213
related to the acquisitions of IDEV Technologies and OptiMedica
Goodwill related to the IDEV acquisition was allocated to the
Vascular Products segment and goodwill related to OptiMedica
was allocated to a non-reportable segment Foreign currency
translation and other adjustments decreased goodwill in 2013 and
2011 by $168 nulhion and $225 million, respectively, and increased
goodwill 1n 2012 by $69 million In addition, in connection with
the separation of AbbVie on January 1, 2013, Abbott transferred
approximately $6 1 billion of goodwill to AbbVie The amount of
goodwill related to reportable segments at December 31, 2013 was
$2 9 billron for the Estabhshed Pharmaceutical Products segment,
$286 mithon for the Nutrinional Products segment, $444 milhon
for the Diagnostic Products segment, and $3 1 billion for the
Vascular Products segment Other than the effects of che separa-
tion of AbbVie, there were no reductions of goodwill relating to
the disposal of all or a portion of a business There was no reduc-
tion of goodwill relating to impairments

The gross amount of amortizable intangible assets, primarily
product rights and technology was $12 2 billion and $176 billien
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and accumulated
amortization was $6 8 bilhion and $9 7 bilhion as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively Indefinite-lived intangible assets,
which relate o 1n-process research and development acquired -
n a business combination, were approximately $266 million and
$691 mullion at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively Gross
amortizable intangible assets, accumulated amortization and
indefinite-hved intangible assets of $5 7 bilhion, $3 8 billion and
$417 million, respectively, were transferred to AbbVie as part of
the separation on January 1, 2013 In 2012 and 2011, Abbott
recorded impairment charges of $69 million and $125 milhon,
respectively, for certan research and development assets due to
changes in the projected development and regulatory timelines
for the projects The charges relate to non-reportable segments
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Discounted cash flow analysis was used to analyze fair value and
the charges are included in research and development expenses

The estmated annual amortization expense for intangible assets
recorded at December 31, 2013 15 approximately $711 million
2014, $652 million in 2015, $636 milhion in 2016, $635 mullion i
2017 and $505 mullion 1n 2018 Amortizable intangible assets are
amortized over 2 to 20 years (average 11 years)

NOTE 7 — RESTRUCTURING PLANS

In 2013, Abbott management approved a plan to reduce costs and
improve efficiencies across various functional areas as well as a plan
to streamline certain manufacturing operations n order to reduce
costs and improve efficiencies in Abbott’s established pharmaceuti-
cals business In additton, in 2012, Abbott management approved
plans to streamline various commercial operations in order to
reduce costs and improve efficiencies in Abbott’s core diagnostics,
established pharmaceutical and nutritionals businesses Abbott
recorded employee related severance charges of approximately

$78 mullton 1n 2013 and $167 nulhion 1n 2012 Addinonal charges of
approximately $4 mullion 1n 2013 and $22 millien n 2012 were also
recorded primanly for asset impairments Approximately $35 mil-
lien in 2013 and $70 million 1n 2012 are recorded 1n Cost of products
sold and approximately $47 million 1n 2013 and $119 million as
Selling, general and administratuve expense in 2012 No significant
cash payments were made during 2012 relating to the 2012 actions
The following summarizes the activity for these restructurings

(v mullions)

Restructuring charges recorded in 2012 $167
Restructuring charges recorded 1n 2013 78
Payments and other adjustments (97)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2013 $148

In 2013 and prior years, Abbott management approved plans to
reabgn its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufacturing
operations and selected domestic and international commercial
and research and development operations in order to reduce costs
In 2013, Abbott recorded employee severance charges of
approximately $11 rullion In 2011, Abbott recorded charges

of approximately $194 million reflecting the impairment of manu-
facturing facilities and other assets, employee severance and other
related charges Approximately $11 mullion in 2013 and $18 nmlhon
wn 2011 are classified as Cost of products sold The remaining 2011
charge of $176 million related to businesses transferred to AbbVie
and 15 being recognized in the results of discontinued operations

The following summarizes the actiity for these restructurings

(in nullions)

Accrued balance at January 1, 2011 $ 77
2011 restructuring charges 194
Payments, impairments and other adjustments (94)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 177
Payments, impatrments and other adjustments (48)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 129
Transfer of liabiluty to Abbvie (62)
Restructuring charges 11
Payments and other adjustments (58)

Accrued balance at December 31, 2013 $ 20
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An addinonal $41 milhen, $110 muthon and $25 million were
recorded 1n 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, relating to these
restructurings, primarily for accelerated depreciation

In 2012 and 2010, Abbott management approved restructuring

plans primanly related to the acquisition of Solvay*s pharmaceuticals

business These plans streamline operations, improve efficiencies and

reduce costs in certan Solvay sites and functions as well as in certain

Abbon and Solvay commercial orgarizations in various countries

In 2012, Abbott recorded a charge of approximately $150 mullion for

employee severance and contractual obligations, primanly related to |

the exit from a research and development facility These charges are ‘
|

related to businesses transferred to AbbVie and are being recognized
in the results of disconnnued operations The accrued restructuring
reserves of $115 million at December 31, 2012 related to these actions
were transferred to AbbVie on January 1, 2013 as part of the separa- ‘
tion As such, there are no remaimning accruals being reported n
Abbott’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2013

In 201t and 2008, Abbott management approved plans to stream-
hne global manufacturing operations, reduce overall costs, and
improve efficiencies in Abbott’s core diagnostic business In 2011,
a charge of $28 million was recorded in Cost of products sold
The following summarizes the activity for these restructurings

(n mulions}

Accrued balance at January 1, 2011 $ 88
2011 restructuring charge 28
Payments and other adjustments @37
Accrued balance at December 31, 2011 79
Payments and other adjustments (23)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2012 56
Payments and other adjustments (15}
Accrued balance at December 31, 2013 $ 41

In addition, charges of approximately $16 millien and $42 nullion
were recorded 1n 2012 and 2011, primanly for accelerated depreci-
ation and product transfer costs

NOTE 8 — INCENTIVE $TOCK PROGRAM

The 2009 Incentive Stock Program authorizes the granting of
nonquahfied stock options, restnicted stock awards, restricted
stock unuts, performance awards, foreign benefits and other
share-based awards Stock options, replacement stock options
and restricted stock awards and units comprise the majority of
benefits that have been granted and are currently outstanding
under this program and a prior program [n 2013, Abbott granted
4,733,378 stock options, 918,819 replacement stock options,
848,674 restricted stock awards and 6,412,867 restricted stock
units under this program

The purchase price of shares under option must be at least equal
to the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant,
and the maximum term of an option 15 10 years Options generally
vest equally over three years Restricted stock awards generally
vest between 3 and 5 years and for restricted stock awards that
vest over 5 years, no more than one-third of the award vests in any
one year upon Abbott reaching a minimum return on equity target
Restricted stock units vest over three years and upon vesting, the
recipient receives one share of Abbott stock for each vested
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restricted stock unit The aggregate farr market value of
restricted stock awards and units 1s recognized as expense over
the service period Restricted stock awards and settlement of
vested restricted stock umits are 1ssued out of treasury shares
Abbott generally 1ssues new shares for exercises of stock options
Abbott does not have a policy of purchasing its shares relating

to 1ts share-based programs

In connection with the separation of AbbVie on January 1, 2013,
Abbott modified its outstanding equity awards granted under
incentive stock programs for its employees The awards were gen-
erally modified such that immedsately following the separation,
the awardees held the same number of awards in Abbott stock and
an equal number of awards 1n AbbVie stock The exercise price on
outstanding Abbott options was adjusted and the exercise price
on the AbbVie options granted under this modification was estab-
lished with the intention of generally preserving the value of the

Options Outstanding
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awards immediately prior to the separation This modification did
not result m additional compensation expense

At December 31, 2013, approximately 130 million shares were
reserved for future grants Subsequent to year-end, the reserve was
reduced by approximately 22 million shares for stock options and
restricted stock awards and umts granted by the Board of Directors

The number of restricted stock awards and units outstanding and
the weighted-average grant-date fair value at December 31, 2013
and January 1, 2013 was 14,385,221 and $30 13 and 15,728,503 and
$25 51, respectively The number of restricted stock awards and
units, and the weighted-average grant-date fair value, that were
granted, vested and lapsed during 2013 were 7,261,541 and $34 92,
7,821,999 and $25 36 and 782,824 and $29 34, respectively

The fair market value of restricted stock awards and units vested
1n 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $274 million, $385 million and

$237 malhion, respectively

Exercisable Options

Weighted Weighted Wweighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Exercise Remaining Exercise Remaining
Shares Price Life (Years) Shares Price Life (Years)
December 31, 2012 (a) 48,685,273 $2497 40 43,511,651 $24 68 37
Granted 5,652,197 3491
Exercised (11,370,121) 2537
1 apsed (210,009) 3182
December 31, 2013 42,757,340 $2615 40 26,185,039 $2502 31

(a) The amount of opuons outstanding and the weighted average exercise pnee have been revised ta reflect the impact of the AbbVie separation

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercis-
able at December 31, 2013 was $525 mullion and $487 mallion,
respectively The total intrinsic value of options exercised 1n 2013,
2012 and 2011 was $120 million, $528 nullion and $94 million,
respectively The total unrecogmzed compensation cost related
to all share-based compensation plans at December 31, 2013
amounted to approximately $153 million, which 15 expected to

be recogmized over the next three years

Total non-cash compensation expense charged against income from
continung operations m 2013, 2012 and 2011 for share-based plans
totaled approximately $262 million, $284 milhen and $256 mullion,
respectively, and the tax benefit recogmzed was approximately
$84 mllion, $87 milhion and $71 mullion, respectively Compensation
cost capitalized as part of inventory 1s not signtficant

The fair value of an option granted in 2013, 2012 and 2011 was

$5 77,36 80, and $6 23, respectively The fair value of an option
grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following assumptions

2013 2012 2011
Risk-free nterest rate 11% 12% 27%
Average hfe of options (years) 60 60 60
Volaulity 200% 210% 210%
Dividend yield 16% 26% 41%

The risk-free interest rate 1s based on the rates available at the
ume of the grant for zero-coupon U § government issues with a
remaiming term equal to the option’s expected hife The average hife
of an option 15 based on both historical and projected exercise and

lapsing data Expected volanlity 1s based on implied volatilities
from traded options on Abbott’s stock and hustorical volatihity of
Abbott’s stock over the expected life of the option Dividend yield
1s based on the option’s exercise price and annual dividend rate
at the time of grant

NOTE 9 — DEBT AND LINES OF CREDIT

The following 15 a summary of long-term debt at December 31

(n mllions) 2013 2012
1 2% Notes, due 2015 (1) 5 -~ $ 3,500
Variable Rate Notes, due 2015 (1} — 500
175% Nates, due 2017 (1) - 4,000
20% Notes, due 2018 (1} - 1,000
5125% Notes, due 2019 947 947
4125% Notes due 2020 597 597
2 9% Notes, due 2022 (1) - 3,100
6 15% Notes, due 2037 547 547
6 0% Notes, due 2039 515 515
5 3% Notes, due 2040 694 694
4 4% Notes, due 2042 (1) - 2,600

Other, including fair value adjustments
relating to interest rate hedge contracts

designated as fawr value hedges 83 85
Total, net of current marurtties 3388 18,085
Current maturitigs of long-term debt 9 309
Total carrying amount $3,397 $18,394

(1) These notes wore 1ssued by AbbVie Inc 1n Nevember 2012 With the separation of AbbVie
on January 1 2013 Abbotr na longer has any obligations related 1o this debt
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In 2012, Abbott redeemed $77 billion of 1ts outstanding notes
Abbott incurred a cost of $1 35 billion to extinguish this deb, net
of gains from the unwinding of interest rate swaps related to the
debt In 2012, AbbVie Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott,
1ssued $14 7 billion of long-term debt with maturities ranging from
3 to 30 years The debt 1ssued by AbbVie Inc was guaranteed by
Abbott with the guarantee expiring when AbbVie Inc separated
from Abbotc on January 1, 2013

Principal payments required on long-term debt outstanding

at December 31, 2013 are $9 nullion in 2014, $10 mallien 1n 2015,
$3 mollion 1n 2016, $1 nullion in 2017, $1 mullhion in 2018 and

$3 3 bullion 1n 2019 and thereafter

At December 31, 2013, Abbott's long-term debt rating was A+

by Standard & Poor’s Corporation and Al by Moody’s Investors
Service Abbott has readily available financial resources, including
unused lines of credit of $5 0 billion that support commercial
paper borrowing arrangements which expire in 2017 Abbott’s
weighted-average interest rate on short-term borrowings was 0 2%
at December 31, 2013 and 0 4% at December 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 16 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, DERIVATIVES AND
FAIR VALUE MEASURES

Certain Abbort foreign subsidiaries enter into foreign currency
forward exchange contracts to manage exposures to changes in
foreign exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases
by those subsidiaries whose functional currencies are not the US
dollar These contracts, totaling $137 mullion at December 31, 2013,
and $1 6 lillion at December 31, 2012, are designated as cash

flow hedges of the vanability of the cash flows due to changes in
foreign exchange rates and are recorded at fair value Contracts
totaling $1 0 billion were transferred to AbbVie as part of the
separation on January 1, 2013 Accumulated gains and losses

as of December 31, 2013 will be included in Cost of products sold
at the time the products are sold, generally through the next
twelve months The amount of hedge mmeffectiveness was not
sigmificant tn 2013, 2012 and 2011

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts
to manage currency exposures for foreign currency denominated

Fair Value — Assets

third-party trade payables and receivables, and for intercompany
loans and trade accounts payable where the receivable or payable
15 denominated 1n a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity For intercompany loans, the contracts require Abbott
to sell or buy foreign currencies, primarily European currencies
and Japanese yen, in exchange for primanly US dollars and aother
Eurcpean currencies For mtercompany and trade payables and
recetvables, the currency exposures are primanly the US dollar,
European currencies and Japanese yen At December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, Abbott held $13 8 lillion, $18 2 billion and $15 7 billion,
respectively, of such foreign currency forward exchange contracts
Contracts totaling $4 3 billion were transferred to AbbVie as part
of the separation on January 1, 2013

Abbott has designated foreign denommated short-term debt as a
hedge of the net investment 1n a foreign subsidiary of approximately
$505 millhon, $615 million and $680 million as of December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively Accordingly, changes in the fair value

of this debt due to changes in exchange rates are recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Abbott 15 a party to nterest rate hedge contracts totaling $1 5 bil-
hon, $9 5 billion and $6 8 tullion at December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively, to manage 1ts exposure to changes 1n the fair
value of fixed-rate debt $8 0 billion of the contracts outstanding
at December 31, 2012 related to debt issued by AbbVie Inc in the
fourth quarter of 2012 and were transferred to AbbVie as part of
the separation on January 1, 2013 These contracts are designated
as fair value hedges of the vaniability of the fair value of fixed-tate
debt due to changes in the long-term benchmark interest rates
The effect of the hedge 1s to change a fixed-rate interest ocbligation
to a variable rate for that portion of the debt Abbott records the
contracts at fair value and adjusts the carrying amount of the
fixed-rate debt by an offsetting amount No hedge imeffectiveness
was recorded in income in 2013, 2012 and 2011 for these hedges

Gross unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale equity
securities totaled $22 million, $51 million and $64 mullion at
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively

The following table summarizes the amounts and location of
certmin dervative financial instruments as of December 31

Fair Value — Liabilities

(1in milhions) 2013 2002

Balance Sheet Caption 2013 2012 Balance Sheet Caption

Interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges 3 B7 §185

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts —

Deferred Income taxes $ — §80 Post-employment
obligations and other

long-term habilities

and other assets

Other prepaid expenses

Hedging instruments 4 22 and recevables - 1 Other accrued hiabilities

Others not designated as hedges 70 98 75 135

Debt destgnated as a hedge of net investment

n a foreign subsidiary — - n/a 505 615 Short-term borrowings
$171 3305 $580  $B41
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The following table summarizes the activity for foreign currency
forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges, debt
designated as a hedge of net investment in a foreign subsidhary
and the amounts and location of iIncome {(expense) and gan

Gasn (Joss) Recogmized in
Other Comprehensive
Income (loss)

ABBOTT 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

{loss) reclassified into income and for certain other denvative
financial instruments The amount of hedge ineffectiveness was
not significant 1n 2013, 2012 and 2011 for these hedges

Income (expense) and
Gain (loss) Reclassified
mnto Income

(n mutlions) 2013 2012 201 2013 2012 2011  Income Statement Caption
Foreigm cutrency forward exchange contracts
designated as cash flow hedges $ 35 $ 13 $ 67 $ 47 $114 $ (44) Cost of products sold
Debt designated as a hedge of net investment
i a foreign subsidiary 110 65 [&1D)] - - - n/a
Interest rate swaps designated os fair value hedges n/a n/a n/a (98) 62 488 Interest expense
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts Net foretgn exchange
not designated as hedges n/a n/a n/a 88 131 (41) (gain) loss
The nterest rate swaps are designated as fair value hedges of The carrying values and fair values of certain financtal instruments
the variabilhity of the fair value of fixed-rate debt due to changes as of December 31 are shown in the table below The carrying values
in the long-term benchmark interest rates The hedged debt s of all other financial mstruments approximate their estimated farr
marked to market, offsetting the effect of marking the interest values The counterparues to financial instruments consist of select
rate swaps to market major internattonal financial institutions Abbort does not expect
any losses from nonperformance by these counterparties
2013 2012

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(n millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term Investment Securtities
Equity securities $ 93 $ 93 & 213 $ 213
Other 26 24 61 56
Total Long-term Debt (3,397) (3.9 (18,394) {19,588)
Foretgn Currency Forward Exchange Contracts
Recervable posiion B4 84 120 120
(Payable) position (75) (75) (146) (146)
Interest Rate Hedge Contracts
Recervable posinon 87 87 185 185
(Payable) position - - (80) (80)
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The following table summanzes the bases used to measure
certain assets and habilities at fair value on a recurring basis in the
balance sheet

Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Quoted Significant Other Significant
Outstanding Prices in Observable Unobservable
(in cullions) Balances Active Markets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2013
Equity securities $ 26 $26 3 - § -
Interest rate swap financial instruments 87 - 87 -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 84 - 84 -
Total Assets $ 197 $26 3 171 5 -
Fair value of hedged long-term debt $1623 $ - $1523 $§ —
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 75 — 75 -
Contingent consideration related to business combinations 208 — — 208
Total Liabilities $ 1,906 §— $1,698 £208
December 31,2012
Equity securttes $ 76 $76 5 - 5 —
Interest rate swap finaneial instruments 185 - 185 -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 120 - 120 -
Total Assets $ 181 $76 $ 305 $ —
Fair value of hedged long-term debt $ 9632 - $9.632 3 -
Interest rate swap financial instruments BO - 8O -
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 146 - 146 -
Contingent consideration related to business combinauons 323 - - 323
Total Liabilities $10,181 §— $9,858 $323

The fair value of the debt was determuined based on the face value of
the debt adjusted for the fair value of the interest rate swaps, which
1s based on a discounted cash flow analysis using significant other
observable inputs The fair value of the contingent consideraton
was determined based on an independent appraisal adjusted for the
time value of money, exchange and other changes in fair value

NOTE 11 — LITIGATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Abbott has been identified as a potentially responsible party for
investigation and cleanup costs at a number of locations in the
United States and Puerto Rico under fedcral and state remediation
laws and 1s investhigating potential contanunation at a number

of company-owned locations Abbott has recorded an estimated
cleanup cost for each site for which management believes Abbott
has a probable loss exposure Ne individual site cleanup exposure
i~ expected o exceed $4 mullion, and the aggregate cleanup
exposure Is not expected to exceed $15 nullion

a8

Abbott 15 involved in various claims and legal proceedings, and
Abbott estimates the range of possible loss for its legal proceedings
and environmental exposures to be from approximately $70 mul-
hion to $90 million The recorded accrual balance at Pecember 31,
2013 for these proceedings and exposures was approximately

$80 million This acerual represents management's best estimate
of probable loss, as defined by FASB ASC No 450, “Contingencies ™
Within the next year, legal proceedings may occur that may result
n a change in the estimated loss accrued by Abbott While wtis

not feasible to predict the outcome of all such proceedings and
exposures with certamty, management believes that their ultimate
disposition should not have a material adverse effect on Abbott's
financtal position, cash flows, or results of operations




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12 — POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Retirement plans consist of defined benefit, defined contribution
and medical and dental plans Informatien for Abbott’s major
defined benefit plans and post-employment medical and dental
benefit plans 15 as follows
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Defined Benefit Plans Medical and Dental Plans

(n millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Projected benefit obligations, January 1 $11,322 $ 9212 $1,889 $ 1,657
Service cost — benefits earned during the year 303 389 43 61
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 276 460 59 81
(Gains) losses, primanly changes 1n discount rates, plan design changes,

law changes and differences between actual and estumated health care costs (650) 1,461 (156) 148
Benefits paid (185) (308) (60) 63)
Separation of AbbVie Inc (4,654) - (450) -
Other, including foreign currency translatton 20 108 (28) 5
Projected benefit obhigauons, December 31 $ 6,432 $11,322 $1,207 $ 1,889
Plan assets at fair value, January 1 $ 7949 $ 6,961 $ 417 $ 389
Actual return on plans’ assets 727 878 61 48
Company contributions 724 379 40 40
Renefits paid (185) (302) (56) (60)
Separation of AbbVie Tnc G117 — — -
Other, pnmarily foreign currency translation 15 33 - -
Plan assets at fair value, December 31 $ 6,123 $ 7949 $ 462 § 417
Projected benefic obligauons greater than plan assets December 31 5 309 $(3.373) $ (835) $(1,472)
1 ong-term assets $ 685 $ 69 $ - $ -
Short-term habilihies an (43) — -
Long-term habihities {983) (3,399) (835) (1472)
Net hability 3 (309) $(3,373) $ (835) $(1472)
Amounts Recogruzed 1n Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (loss)

Actuanial losses, net % 1,79t % 4923 § 334 $ 701
Prior service cost (credits) 20 61 (252) {322)
Total $ 181 $ 4,084 $ 82 $ 379

In connection with separation of AbbVie on January 1, 2013,
Abbott transferred to AbbVie Accumulated other comprehensive
losses, net of income taxes, of approximately $1 4 billion The pro-
jected benefit obligations for non-U § defined benefit plans was
$2 0 bilhon and $3 1 billion at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respec-
tively The accumulated benefit obligations for all defined benefit
plans were $5 5 billion and $9 6 billion at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively

For plans where the accumulated benefit cbligations exceeded
plan assets at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the aggregate accumu-
lated benefit obligations, the projected benefit obligations and the
aggregate plan assets were as follows

(in mullions) 2013 2012
Accumulated benefit obligation $408 $8,100
Projected benefit obligation 505 9,619
Fair value of plan assets - 6243

In 2011, $776 million of assets and Liabihtes of a plan sponsored by
Abbott Healthcare BV, o Dutch subsidiary of Abbott Laboratories,
were trrevocably transferred to a Dutch insurance company in full
settlement of that plan The assets were used to purchase an annu-
1ty contract to fulfill the plan’s obligations

4%
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The components of the net periodic benefit cost were as follows

Defined Benefit Plans Medicat and Dental Plans

(n mulltons) 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Service cost — benefits earned during the year $303 $389 $ 332 $43 $ 61 $ 5%
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 276 460 446 59 81 88
Expected return on plans’ assets (396) (611) (608) (36) (33) (34)
Settlement — — 40 - - -
Amoruzation of actuarial losses 169 244 163 34 34 38
Ameruzation of prior service cost {eredits) 3 2 4 (35) {42) (42)
Total cost 355 484 377 65 101 108
Less Dhscontinued operations — (206) (176) - 48) 49
Net cost - continuing operations $ 355 $ 278 $ 201 365 § 53 $ 56

Other comprehensive income {loss) for each respective year
mcludes the amortization of actuarial losses and prior service
costs (credits) as noted in the previous table Other comprehensive
income (loss) for each respective year also includes net actuarial
gams and prior service credits of $995 million for defined benefit
plans and $201 millien for medical and dental plans 1n 2013, net
actuanal losses of $1 2 billion for defined benefit plans and net
actuarial losses of $134 milhion for medical and dental pians in
2012, and net actuarial losses of $11 billion for defined benefit
plans and net actuanal gains of $66 million for medical and dental
plans in 2011 The actuanal losses for 2012 and 2011 related to

the businesses transferred to AbbVie as part of the separation
were $167 million and $19 mullion, respectively, prior service costs
were not stgnificant

The pretax amount of actuanal losses and prior service cost
{credits) included in Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) at December 31, 2013 that 1s expected to be recognized in
the net periodic benefit cost in 2014 15 $102 nullion and $2 million
of expense, respectively, for defined benefit pension plans and

$17 million of expense and $37 million of income, respectively,

for medical and dental plans

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations for defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans
are as follows

2013 2012 2011
Dhscount rate 49% 43% 50%
Fxpected aggregate average
long-term change in compensation 50% 53% 53%

50

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the net
cost for defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans are
as follows

2011 2012 201
Discount rate 4 2% 50% 54%
Expected return on plan assets 78% B80% 78%
Expected aggregate average
long-term change in compensation 50% 53% 51%

The assumed health care cost trend rates for medical and dental
plans at December 31 were as follows

2013 2012 2011
Health care cost trend rate
assumed for the next year 7% 7% 7%
Rate that the cost trend rate
gradually declines to 5% 5% 5%
Year that rate reaches the
assumed ultimate rote 2019 2019 2019

The discount rates used to measure habilities were determined
based on lgh-quality fixed income securities that match the
duration of the expected retiree benefits The health care cost
trend rates represent Abbott’s (xpected annual rates of change

in the cost of health care benefits and s a forward projection of
health care costs as of the measurement date A one-percentage
pomnt increase/(decrease) in the assumed health care cost trend
rate would increase/{decrease) the accumulated post-employment
benefit obligations as of December 31, 2013, by $177 mullion /
$(146) millhion, and the total of the service and interest cost
components of net post-employment health care cost for the year
then ended by approximately $18 millron/$(14) mithon
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The following table summarizes the bases used to measure the
defined benefit and medical and dental plan assets at fair value

{in millions) Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Quoted  Significant
Pricestn Other  Sigmificant
Outstanding, Active  Observable Unobservable
December 31,2013 Balances  Markets Inputs Inputs
Equities
U S large cap (a) % 1,618 § 741 £ 877 $ -
US rmud cap (b) 409 134 275 -
International (¢} 1,319 608 711 —
lefd wncome securities
US government
securities (d) 453 61 392 —
Corporate debt
nstruments {e) 378 108 270 —
Non-US§ government
securittes () 536 305 23 —
Other (g) 77 6% 8 -
Abselute return funds (h) 1,474 197 791 486
Commodities (1) 170 6 97 67
Other (1) 151 149 - 2
$6,585 $2,378 $3,652 $555
December 31, 2012
Equities
US large cap (a) $ 1,831 $1,058 $ 773 $ —
U8 mud cap (b) 491 133 358 -
International (¢} 1,607 657 950 —
Fixed income securities
U S government
securities {d) RG99 172 727 -
Corporate debt
mstrutments (e) 736 355 381 -
Non-U S government
securities (f) 374 83 291 -
Other (g) 24 — 24 —
Abseclute return funds (h) 2,070 85 1,246 739
Commodities (1) 222 9 172 41
Other (3} n2 109 - 3
$8,366 $2,661 $4,922 $783

Prior year amoums have been revised to conform with the current year s asset classifications

{a) A max of index funds that track the 5&P 500 (60 percent 1n 2013 and 50 percent tn 2012}
and scpacate sctively managed equity accounts thar 2re benchmarked to the Russell 1000
(40 percent in 2013 and 50 pereent 1n 2012)

(b

A mux of index funds (70 percent in 2013 and 75 percent s 2012) and separate actively
managed equity accounts (30 percent in 2013 and 25 percent in 2012} that track or are
benchmarked to the S&P 400 mudcap index

(c

Primarily separate actively managed pooled investment accounts that are benchmarked
to the MSLI and M5LT emerging market indsces

€]

Index funds not actively managesd (50 percent in 2013 and 2012) and separate actively
managed accounts {50 percent in 2013 and 2012)

(e} [Index funds not actn cly manzged (40 pereent in 2013 and 20 pereenit an 2012) and
scparate actively managed accounts (80 percent in 2013 and 80 pereent 1 2012)

{f} Pnmanly United hingdom Japan and Irnsh government assued bonds

(g} Pnmanly mortgage backed securiies
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(h) Pnmarnty funds tnvested by managers that have » global mandate with the flexibility
to allocate capiral broadly across a wide range of assct classes and strategies includeng,
but not Limited to equities fixed income commodaties interest rate futures currencies
and other securities to eutperform an agreed upon benchmark with speeifie return and
volaulity targets

(@ Primanly investments in hguid commodity future contracts and private energy funds

() Primanly cash and cash equivalens

Equities that are valued using quoted prices are valued at the
pubhished market prices Equities 1n a common collective trust or
a registered investment company that are valued using significant ‘
other observable inputs are valued at the net asset value (NAV) |
provided by the fund admunistrator The NAV 1s based on the value

of the underlying assets owned by the fund minus its habiities ‘
Fixed income securities that are valued using significant other
observable inputs are valued at prices obtained from independent
financal service industry-recogmzed vendors Absctute return |
funds and commodities are valued at the NAV provided by the fund
admunistrator Private energy funds are valued at the NAV provided
by the partnership on a one-quarter lag adjusted for known cash
flows and sigmficant events through the reporting date

The following table summarizes the change in the value of assets
that are measured using significant unobnervable inputs [

(n mtllions) 2013 2082

January 1 $783 $682

Transfers in (out of } from other categories 6 6

Separaton of AbbVie Inc (165) -

Actual return on plan assets

Assets on hand at year end 29 59

Assets sold during the year 51 4)
Purchases, sales and settlements, net (149} 40

December 31 $555 $783

The investment mix of equity securities, fixed income and other
asset allocation strategies 1s based upon achieving a desired
return, balancing higher return, more volatile equity securities,
and lower return, less volanie fixed income securities Investment
allocations are made across a range of markets, industry sectors,
capitalization si1zes, and in the case of fixed income securities,
maturities and credit quality The plans do not directly hotd any
securities of Abbott There are no known sigmficant concentra-
tions of risk in the plans' assets Abbott s medical and dental plany’
assets are invested 1n a similar mix as the pension plan aswsets

The actual asset allocation percentages at year end are consistent
with the company’s targeted asser allocation peicentages

The plans’ expected return on assets, as shown above 1s based on
management's expectations of long-term average rates of return to
be achieved by the underlying immvestment portfolios In establishing
this assumption, management considers historical and expected
returns for the asset classes in which the plans are invested, as well
as current economuc and capital market conditions
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Abbott funds its domestic pension plans according to IRS funding U S income taxes are provided on those earmings of {oreign
limutations International pension plans are funded according subsidiaries which are intended to be remitted to the parent
to similar regulations Abbott funded $724 mulhion in 2013 and company Abbott does not record deferred income taxes
$379 mullion in 2012 to defined pension plans Abbott expects on earnings reinvested indefinitely in foreign subsidiaries
to contribute approximately $400 mulion to its pension plans Undistributed earnings reinvested indefinitely in foreign
1 2014, of which approximartely $300 million relates to 1ts main subsidiaries as working capital and plant and equipment
domestic penston plan aggregated $24 0 bilhon at December 31, 2013 It 1s not pract-
Total benefit payments expected to be pard to particpants, which cable to determune the amount of deferred income taxes not
includes payments funded from company assets, as well as pmd provided on these earnings In the US, Abbott’s federal income
from the plans, are as follows tax returns through 2010 are settled except for three stems, and
the income tax returns for years after 2010 are open There are
Defined Medical and
numerous other income tax jurisdictions for which tax returns
(in milhons) Benefi¢ Plans Dental Plans are not yet settled, none of which are individually significant
2014 3 186 £71
2015 198 7 Reserves for interest and penaluies are not significant
2016 213 74 Earnings from continuing operations before taxes, and the
2017 270 76 related provisions for taxes on earmings from continuing operations,
2018 240 77 were as follows
2019 to 2023 1,578 417 {(in mullions) 2013 2012 2011
Earmings (Loss) From
The Abbott Stock Retirement Plan is the principal defined Conunuing Operations Before Taxes
contribution plan Abbott's contributions to this plan were Domestic $ 529 $(1,515) $ (593)
$86 nullion in 2013, $150 mullion 1n 2012 and $151 nullion 1n 2011 Foreign 1,992 1,820 1,829
The contribution amounts 1n 2012 and 2011 include amounts Total $2,521 $ 305 $1,236
associated with the businesses transferred to AbbVie
NOTE 13 — TAXES ON EARNINGS FROM 2013 2012 201
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Taxes on Earmings From
Continaing Operations
Taxes on earnings from continuing operations reflect the annual Current
effective rates, including charges for interest and penalues Domestic $ 16 s @n $(888)
Deferred income taxes reflect the tax consequences on future Foreign 555 979 797
years of differences between the tax bases of assets and habilities Total current 571 058 1)
and therr financial reporting amounts Deferred
In 2013, taxes on earnings from continuing operations reflect Domestic (308) (572) 360
the recognition of $234 millien of tax benefits as a result of the Foretgn (125) (660) 159}
favorable resolution of various tax positions pertaining to prior Total deferred (433) (1,232) 201
years Earnings from discontinued operations in 2013 include Total $ 138 $ Q271 $ 10
the recogmition of $193 mullion of tax benefits as a result of the
resolution of various tax positions related to AbbVie's operations Differences between the effective income tax rate and the
prior to the separation In addition, as a result of the American U S statutory tax rate were as follows
Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 signed into law 1n January 2013, 2013 2012 2011
Abbott recognized a tax benefit in the tax provision related Statatory tax rate on earnings
to continuing operations of approximately $103 mullion for the from continuing operations 350% 350% 35 0%
retroactive extension of the research tax credit and the took- Benefit of lowet tax rates and
through rules of section 954()(6) of the Inteinal Revenue Code tax exemptions on foreign income (s o) 757 (149
to the beginning of 2012 The $1 515 billion domestic loss before Resolution of certan tax positions
taxes in 2012 includes $1 29 billion of net loss on the early pertaining to pricr years 93 (694) (14 0)
extmguishment of debt Effect of retroactive legaslation [CR)] - -
State taxes, net of federal benefit 17 34 03
All other, net 02 170 31
Effective tax rate on earmings
from continuing operations 55% (89 7% 89%
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The tax effect of the differences that give rise to deferred tax
assets and habilities were as follows

(in mullions) 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets

Compensation and employee benefits $ B62 $ 1,936
Other, primanly reserves not currently deductible,

and NOL's and credut carryforwards 2908 3,278
Trade receivable reserves 155 557
Inventory reserves 137 211
Deferred intercompany profit 274 1,095
State income taxes 196 197
Total deferred tax assets 4532 7,274

Deferred tax habilites
Depreciation (72) (75)
Other, pnmarily the excess of book basis

over tax basis of intangible assets (1774) (2,447)
Total deferred tax labilities (1,846) (2,522)
Total net deferred tax assets $ 2686 $ 4752

Abbott has curred losses in a foreign junisdiction where
reahization of the fututre economic benefit 15 so remote that the
benefit 1s not reflected as a deferred tax asset Valuation allow-
ances for recorded deferred tax assets were not significant

The following table summarizes the gross amounts of unrecogmzed
tax benefits without regard to reduction in tax liabilities or adds-
tions to deferred tax assets and habihivies of such unrecognized tax
benefits were settled

(in milhions) 2013 2012
January 1 $2,257 $2,123
Increase due to current year tax positions 244 673
Increase due (o prior year tax positions 152 62
Diecrease due to prior year tax positions (541) (438)
Lapse of statute 23 —
Settlements (124) {163)
December 31 $1,965 $2,257

The total amount of unrecogmzed tax benefits that, If recognized,
would impact the effective tax rate 1s approximately $1 7 biilion
Abbott believes that it 15 reasonably possible that the recorded
amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits may decrease by

$350 nullion to $425 million, including cash adjustments, within
the next twelve months as a result of concluding various domestic
and international tax matters
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NOTE 14 — SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA INFCRMATION

Abbott’s principal business is the discovery, development, manufac-
ture and sale of a broad line of health care products Abbott’s products
are generally sold directly to retmlers, wholesalers, hospitals, health
care facilities, laboratories, physicians’ offices and government
agencies throughout the world As a result of the separation

of AbbVie, Abbott no longer has a Proprietary Pharmaceutical
Products segment and this bustness has been removed from the
2012 and 2011 hustorical information presented below Abbott's
reportable segments are as follows

Established Pharmaceutical Products — International sales
of a broad line of branded generic pharmaceutical products

Nutrittonal Products — Worldwide sales of a broad line of adult
and pediatric nutnitional products

Dragnostic Products - Worldwide sales of diagnostic systems and
tests for blood banks, hospitals, commercaal laboratonies and
alternate-care tesung sites For segment reporung purposes, the
Core Laboratories Diagnostics, Molecular Diagnostics, Point of
Care and Ibis diagnostic divistons are aggregated and reported

as the Diagnostic Products segment

Vascular Products — Worldwide sales of coronary, endovascular,
structural heart, vessel closure and other medical device products

Non-reportable segments include the Diabetes Care and Medical
Optics segments

Abbott’s underlying accounting records are maintained on a legal
entity basis for government and public reporting requirements
Segment disclosures are on a performance basis consistent with
internal management reporting The cost of some corporate
functions and the cost of certain employee benefits are charged to
segments at predetermined rates that approximate cost Remamning
costs, if any, are not allocated to segments Inaddition, effective
January 1, 2013, intangible asset amortization 1s not allocated to
operating segments, and mtangible assets and goodwall are not
included in the measure of each segment’s assets The segment
information below for 2012 and 2011 has been adjusted to exclude
intangible asset amortization from coperating earmings and itangi-
ble assets and goodwill from the total segment asset information
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The following segment information has been prepared in
accordance with the internal accounting policies of Abbaott,
as described above, and are not presented in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles applied to the

consohidated financial statements
Net Sales to

(n muthions) External Customers {(a)

Operating Earnings (a)

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 201
Established
Pharmaceutscals  $ 4,974 $ 5121 $ 57355 $1,182 §$1,237 $1,254
Nutritionals 6,740 6,461 5,989 1263 1,020 792
Dhagnostics 4,545 4,292 4126 L008 825 794
Vascular 3,012 3,071 3,333 962 1,020 1,111
Total Reportable
Segments 19,271 18,945 18,803 $4,415 $4,002 $3951
Other 2,577 2,549 2,604
Total $21,848 $21,494 $21,407

{2) Nctsales and operating carnings were unfavorably affected by the relatively stronger
US dollar 1n 2013 and 2012 and were favorably affected by the relatively weaker

US dollar in 2011

(n melltons) 2013 2012 201

Total Reportable Segment

Operating Earnings $4415 $ 4,102 $ 3,951

Corporate funcuons and

benefit plans costs (514) (598) (529)
Non-reportable segments 423 443 457

Net interest expense (90} (288) (294)
Net loss on extingunshment of debt - 1,351} —

Share-based compensation (262) {284) (256)
Amortization of intangible assets (791) (795) {(884)
Other, net (b} (660) {924) (1,209}
Earnings from Continuing Operations

before Taxes $2,521 $ 305 $1,236

) Other netincludes charges for cost reduction iniuatives of approximately $350 mallion
m 2013 and $420 oullion in 2012 and charges of $240 milhion 1n 2011 for cost reduction

tnhatves and micgration

Additions to

{in mullions) Depreciation Long-term Assets ‘Total Assets
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Established Pharmaceuticals $ 84 % 156 $ 169 $ 128 3 237 $ 122 $2637 $2805 § 4348
Nutritionals 190 175 167 340 428 205 3518 321 2939
Diagnostics 368 295 313 354 349 304 3312 3,286 3,218
Vascular 122 76 99 62 69 109 1,711 1,834 1400
Total Reportable Segments 764 702 748 924 1,083 830 $11,178  $11136  $11,905
Other 164 661 647 982 902 845
Total $928  §1,363  $1395 $1,906  $L985  $1,675
(in mullions) 2013 2012 2011 Net Sales to
Total Reportable Segment Assets $11,178 $11,136 $11,905 (in mulhions) External Customers (d) Long-term Assets (e)
Cash, investments and restricted funds (e) 8,217 15448 8476 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Current deferred income taxes (¢) 2,528 2,986 2,701 United States $ 6,269 $ 6,349 § 6302 § 7884 $15,244 $15867
Non-reportable segments 1,181 1,167 1,148 Japan 1442 1,723 1,726 902 1,169 1,225
Goodwill and intangible assets (c) 15,507 24,362 25695 Germany 1,070 984 1,058 1,040 6,173 5909
All other () 4,342 12136 10 352 The Netherlands 960 1107 1,204 560 532 462
Total Assets $42,953 $67,235 $60,277 China 1,083 859 625 356 259 127
(c) In2012and 2011 the reported amouncs include asscts associated wich the businesses India 922 e 917 3,080 3467 3160
transferred 1o AbbVic as part of the separation Brazil 470 448 470 216 200 186
Switzerland 792 693 591 1,117 1,214 1,045
Canada 734 753 652 368 352 237
Italy 726 719 761 100 222 229
France 6RO 667 781 1R 220 214
Russia 525 485 427 30 37 21
Spain 413 Hur 447 326 314 293
Umited Kingdom 479 497 475 1,380 1,345 1,273
All Other Countnes 5,283 4,874 4,971 6133 5164 6,260
Consolidared $21848 $21494 3521407  $23705 $35912 $36,508

{d) Sales by country are based on the country that sold the product

(&) Amounts reported 1n 2012 and 2011 include assets assaciated with businesses transferred

to AbbVie as part of the scpamtion
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NOTE 15 — QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

(in mullons except per share data) 2013 2012
First Quarter
Continumg Operations

Net Sales $5,378 $5,284
Gross Profit 2,747 2,716
Earnings from Continuing Operations 545 351
Basic Earmings per Common Share 035 022
Diluted Earnings per Common Share 034 022
Net Earnings 545 1,242
Basic Earnings per Common Share (a) 035 079
Diluted Earnings per Common Share (a) 034 078
Market Price per Share-High (b) 3534 2942
Market Price per Share-Low (b) 3164 2582

Second Quarter
Continuing Operations

Net Sales 35,446 $5313
Gross Profit 2,704 2748
Earnings from Continuing Operations 476 411
Basic Earnings per Common Share 030 026
Diluted Earnings per Common Share 030 026
Net Earnings 476 1,725
Basic Earmings per Common Share {(a) 030 109
Diluted Earmings per Common Share (2) 030 108
Market Price per Share-High (b) 3877 3085
Market Prece per Share-Low (b) 34 69 28 25
Third Quarter
Continuing Operations
Net Sales $5,369 $5,265
Gross Profit 2,722 2,581
Earmings from Continuing Operations 773 339
Basic Earnings per Commaon Share 050 021
Diluted Earnings per Commen Share 049 021
Net Earmings 966 1,943
Basic Earnings per Common Share (a) 062 122
Diluted Farnmings per Common Share (a) 061 121
Market Price per Share-High (b) 3716 3369
Market Price per Share-Low (b} 3270 2039
Fourth Guarter
Contunuing Operations
Net Sales $5,655 $5,632
Gross Profit 2,844 2837
Earnings (loss} from Contintung Operattons 589 (522)
Basic Earnings per Common Share 038 033
Diluted Earnings per Common Share 037 (©33)
Net Earnings 589 1,053
Basic Earnings per Common Share (a} 038 066
Diluted Farmings per Common Share (a) 037 066
Market Price per Share-High (b) 3881 3467
Market Price per Share-Low (b) 3275 2996

(a) The sum of the four quarters of earmings per share for 2012 and 2012 may not
add to the full ycar earmings per share amount due to rounding and/or the use of
quarter-to-date weighted average shares to caleulate the carnings per share amount
n each respective quarter

(b) The 2012 market prices per share reflect histenical share pnces that have been adjusted
to reflect the separation of AbbVic
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Abbott Laboratories i1s responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting Abbott’s internal control system was designed
to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management
and board of directors regarding the preparatien and fair
presentation of pubhshed financial statements

Allinternal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
mherent imications Therefore, even those systems determined
to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and presentation

Abbott’s management assessed the effectiveness of the company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013
in making this assessment, 1t used the criteria set forth in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (1992) 1ssued by the Commuttee
of Sponsoring Orgamzations of the Treadway Commussion Based
on our assessment, we believe that, as of December 31, 2013, the
company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective
based on those criteria

Abbott’s independent registered public accounting firm has 1ssued
an audit report on their assessment of the effectiveness of the
company's internal control over financial reporung This report
appears on page 57

Miles D White

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas C Freyman

Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Robert E Funck

Vice President, Controller

February 21, 2014
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REPCORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott Laboratories

‘We have audited the accompanying consohdated balance sheets
of Abbott Laboratonies and substdianes (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements
of earnings, comprehensive income, shareholders’ investment,

and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2013 These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management Our responsibility 1s to express an
opimon on these financal statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit

to obtan reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents are free of matenal misstatement An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements An audit also mcludes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant esttmates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation 'We beheve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion, such conschdated financial statements present
fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of
its operations and 1ts cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America

As discussed in Note 2 to the consohdated financial statements,

on January 1, 2013, the Company distributed all of the outstanding
shares of AbbVie Inc, which encompasses the Company’s research-
based pharmaceuticals business, to the Company's shareholders
Also, as discussed 1n Note 1,1n 2011 the Company changed the year
end of its foreign subsidiaries from a November 30 fiscal year end
to a December 31 calendar year end

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unued States), the Company's
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based
on cnteria established 1n Internal Control - Integrated Framework
{1992) 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamzations of the
Treadway Commussion and our report dated February 21, 2014
expressed an unqualified opimion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporung

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Hllinois
February 21, 2014

To the Board of Directors and Sharcholders of Abbott Laboratories

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting

of Abbott Laboratories and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as

of December 31, 2013, based on criteria estabhished 1n Internal
Control - Integrated Framework (1992) 1ssued by the Commuttee of
Sponsoring Orgamizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
eriteria) The Company’s management s responsible for mamntain-
ing effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included 1n the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility 1s to
express an opimon on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was mawntained 1n all materal
respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, and performung such other procedures as we considered
necessary m the circumstances We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basts for our opinion

A company’s internal control over financial reporting 15 a process
designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliabihity of financial reperting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles A company’s internal
control over financinl reporung includes those policies and proce-
dures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authornza-
uons of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a matenial effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitanions of internal control over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper man-
agement overnde of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate

En our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2013, based on the cntena established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (1992) 1ssued by the Commuttee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the I'readway Commussion

We also have audited, 1n accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for

the year ended December 31, 2013 and our report dated February 21,
2014 expressed an unqualified opimion on those financial statements
and includes an explanatory paragraph regarding the distribution

of the shares of AbbVie Inc to the Company’s shareholders and the
Company's change to the year end of its foreign subsidiaries

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llhnows
February 21, 2014
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

MARKET PRICE SENSITIVE INVESTMENTS

Abbott holds available-for-sale equity secunties from strategic
technology acquisiions The market vatue of these investments was
approximately $26 mullion and $76 million as of December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively The decrease 1s due to the sale of securities
Abbott monitors these investments for other than temporary
declines in market value, and charges impairment losses to
income when an other than temporary dechine in value occurs

A hypothetical 20 percent decrease 1n the share prices of these
investments would decrease theiwr farr value at December 31, 2013
by approximately $5 nullion (A 20 percent decrease 1s believed
to be a reasonably possible near-term change n share prices )

NON-PUBLICLY TRADED EQUITY SECURITIES

Abbott holds equity securities from strategic technology acquisi-
tions that are not traded on public stock exchanges The carrying
value of these investments was approximately $67 mihon and
$137 nullion as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively The
decrease of non-publicly traded securities 1s due to the separation
of AbbVie on January 1, 2013 No individual investment 1s recorded
at a value 1n excess of $20 million Abbott monitors these invest-
ments for other than temporary dechines in market value, and
charges impairment losses to income when an other than tempo-
rary decline in estimated value occurs

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, Abbott had interest rate hedge
contracts totaling $1 5 illion and $9 5 billien, respectively, to man-
age 1ts exposure to changes in the fair value of debt $8 0 billion
of these contracts related to debt 1ssued by AbbVie Inc in the
fourth quarter of 2012 and were transferred to AbbVie as part of
the separation on January 1, 2013 The effect of these hedges 1s to
change the fixed interest rate to a vaniable rate Abbott does not
use derivative financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps,
to manage its exposure to changes 1n interest rates for its invest-
ment securities At December 31, 2013, Abbott had $2 5 billion of
domestic commercial paper outstanding with an average annual
interest rate of 0 13% with an average remaiwning Life of 34 days
The fair value of long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012
amounted to $3 9 billion and $19 6 billion, respectively (average
interest rates of 5 3% and 2 9% as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

respectively} with maturities through 2040 At December 31, 2013
and 2012, the far value of current and long-term investment
securities amounted to approximately $4 7 billion A hypothetical
100-basis point change n the interest rates would not have a matertal
effect on cash flows, income or market values (A 100-basis point
change 1s believed to be a reasonably possible near-term change

I rates )

FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Certain Abbott foreign subsidiaries enter into foreign currency
forward exchange contracts to manage exposures to changes in
foreign exchange rates for anticipated intercompany purchases
by those subsidiartes whose functional currencies are not the U'S
dollar These contracts are destgnated as cash flow hedges of the
variability of the cash flows due to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates and are marked-to-market with the resulting gatns
or losses reflected in Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) Gains or losses will be included in Cost of products sold at
the time the products are ~old, generally within the next twelve
months At December 31, 2013 and 2012, Abbott held $137 mull:on
and $1 6 billion, respectively, of such contracts, which all mature
n the followng calendar year Contracts totaling $1 0 billion were
transferred to AbbVie as part of the separation on January 1, 2013

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts
to manage its exposure to foreign currency dencnunated inter-
company loans and trade payables and thtrd-party trade payables
and recewvables The contracts are marked-to-market, and result-
ng gans ot losses are reflected tn income and are generally offset
by losses or gains on the foreign currency exposure being man-
aged At December 31, 2013 and 2012, Abbett held $13 8 billion
and $18 2 bithon, respectively, of such contracts, which mature in
the next twelve months $4 3 billion of these contracts were trans-
ferred to AbbVie a part of the separation on January 1, 2013

Abbott has designated foreign denominated short-term debt

of approximately $505 million and approximately $615 million as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, as a hedge of the net
investment 1n a foreign subsidiary Accordingly, changes i the fair
value of this debt due to changes in exchange rates are recorded
in Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax

The following table reflects the total foreign currency forward
contracts outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Fair and Farr and
Weighted Carrying Weighted Carrying
Average Value Average Value
Contract Exchange  Receivable/ Contract Fxchange Recewahle/
(dollars in muillions) Amount Rate (Payable) Amount Rate (Payable)
Recenne pnimarnly US Dollars
1m exchange for the following currencies
Furo $ 6,208 13735 (4 $11 349 1317 % (4}
Brittsh Pound 1,181 1624 1 1,318 1621 1
Japanese Yen 1.865 990 12 2,624 812 9
Caonadian Dollar 191 106 1 332 992 1
All other currencies 4,446 N/A [4})] 4169 N/A (33)
Total $13891 $9 $19,792 $(26)
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Abbott’s revenues are derived primarily from the sale of a broad line
of health care products under short-term recervable arrangements
Patent protection and ltcenses, techmological and performance
features, and inclusion of Abbott’s products under a contract most
impact which products are sold, price controls, competition and
rebates most impact the net selling prices of products, and foreign
currency translation impacts the measurement of net sales and
costs Abbott’s primary products are nutrittonal products, branded
generic pharmaceuticals, diagnostic testing products and vascular
products Sales i international markets comprise approximately
70 percent of consolidated netsales

In October 2011, Abbott announced a plan to separate into two
publicly traded companies, cne 1n diversified medical products
and the other in research-based pharmaceuticals To accomphish
the separation, Abbott created a new company, AbbVie Inc
{“AbbVie") for its research-based pharmaceuticals business
which consists primanly of Abbett’s historical Proprietary
Pharmaceutical Products segment On January 1, 2013, Abbott
distributed all of the outstanding shares of AbbVie to Abbott's
shareholders and AbbVie became an independent company
trading under the symbol “ABBV"

The historical operating results of the research-based
proprietary pharmaceuticals business prior to separation are
excluded from Earmings from Contunuing Operations and are
presented on the Earnungs from Discontinued Operations line

in Abbott’s Consohidated Statement of Earnings The assets,
habilities, and cash flows of the research-based proprietary
pharmaceuticals business are included in Abbotts Consohdated
Balance Sheet and 1ts Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for
periods prior to January 1, 2013

Sales growth and margin improvement 1n the nutritional and
diagnostics businesses and the challenging ecenomic and fiscal
environment in many countries around the world have impacred
Abbott’s sales, costs and financial position over the last three
years Sales m emerging markets increased 11 percent per year in
2013 and 2012, excluding foreign exchange, despite the slowdown
1in several emerging economies and a weakening of key emerging
market currencies 1in 2013 {Emerging markets include all
countries except the Umited States, Western Europe, Japan,
Canada, and Austraha)

In Abbott’s worldwide nutritional products business, sales over
the last three years were positively impacted by demographics
such as an aging population and an increasing rate of chronic
disease in developed markets and the rise of a middle class in
many emerging markets, as well a« by numerous new product
introductions that leveraged Abbott’s strong brands At the same
time, manufactunng and distnibution process changes and other
cost reductions drove margin Improvements across the business
Operating margins for this business increased from 13 2 percent
In 2011 to 18 7 percent in 2013

1n 2013 sales growth in International Pediatric Nutrition was
affected by a product recall initiated 1n August 2013 11 China
and two other markets for certamn pediatric nutritional preducts
supplied to Abbott by a third-party manufacturer While there
were no health 1swues associated with the recalled products, and
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the supplier subsequently determined that the products had been
safe for consumption, the recall created signmificant disruption in
these markets As aresult, International Pediatric Nutrition sales
were sigmificantly lower than Abbotts previous expectations for
this business for the second half of 2013 While Abbott imtiated
investments in the third quarter of 2013 in these markets to
rebuild consumer confidence, Abbott expects the recall to con-
tinue to have a negative impact on sales in the first half of 2014

In Abbott™ worldwide diagnestics business, margin improvement
continued to be a key focus in 2013 Operating margins increased
from 19 2 percent of sales in 2011 to 22 2 percent in 2013 as the
business continued to execute on efficiency initiatives 1n the man-
ufacturing and supply chain functions In addition to continued
margin improvement, unit growth across geographical regions
positively impacted worldwide diagnosuc sales Worldwide sales
for this business increased 8§ 3 percent 1n 2013 and 73 percent m
2012, excluding fereign exchange

In the Established Pharmaceutical Products segment, macroeco-
nomic and market pressures in certain emerging markets impacted
this business 11 2013 Nevertheless, sales 1n this segment’s 14 key
emerging markets increased 6 3 percent n 2013 excluding the effect
of foreign exchange However, the growth 1n emerging markets was
largely offset by declines 1n developed markets where austerity
measures have continued to impact performance

Over the last three years 1n the vascular business, Abbott continued
to build its Xrence drug-eluting stent franchise with the receipt of
approval to market Xtence Xpeditton in various countries, including
Japanese approval in the third quarter of 2013 and U S approvalin
the fourth quarter of 2012 Xrence Pro received CE Mark approval

in the second quarter of 2012 Abbott’~ market share also benefited
from the U § launches of Xwence nano and Xtence PRIME 1n 2011,
and the Japanese launches of Xience PRIME small vessel DES 1n
2013 and Xrence PRIME in April 2012 Xience, which includes Xience
V, PRIME, nano, Pro, and Xpedition, ended 2013 as the market-lead-
ing drug eluting stent globally In 2013, ABSORB and MitraClip also
contributed to sales growth In 2011, the thard party distributor of
the Promus product began transitioning away from the product and
that supply agreement ended 1n 2012 The effect of the winding
down of the agreement continued into the first quarter of 2013

Abbott’s short- and long-term debt totaled $6 6 billion at
December 31, 2013 At December 31, 2013, Abbott’s long-term
debt rating was A+ by Standard and Peor’s Corporation and Al by
Moody’s Envestors Service In the fourth quarter of 2012, Abbott
extinguished $77 tillion of long-term debt and incurred a charge
of $1 35 billion related to the early repayment, net of gains

from the unwinding of interest rate swaps related to the debt

In October 2013 Abbott announced a 57 percent increase in
Abbort « quarterly dividend to $0 22 per share from $0 14 per
share, effective with the dividend paid in February 2014

In 2014, Abbott will focus on several key initiatives In the nutn-
tional busimess, Abbott will continue to build its product portfolio
with the introduction of new science-based products, expand in
high-growth emerging markets and implement additional margin
tmprovement imnatives In the established pharmaceuncals busi-
ness, Abbott will continue to focus on obtaing addittonal product
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approvals across numerous countries and expandmg its presence i
emerging markets In the diagnostics business, Abbott will focus on
the development of next-generation instrument platforms and other
advanced technologies, expansion 1n emerging markets, and further
improvements n the segment’s operating margin In the vascular
busness, Abbott will continue to focus on marketing products

m the Xtence and endovascular franchises, and mereasing MitraClip
sales, as well as further chnical development of ABSORB, its biore-
sorbable vascular scaffold (BVS) device and a further penetration
of ABSORB in numerous countries In Abbott’s other segments,
Abbott will focus on developing differentiated technologies in
higher growth markets

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sales Rebates—In 2013, approximately 49 percent of Abbott's
consolidated gross revenues were subject to various forms of
rebates and allowances that Abbott recorded as reductions of
revenues at the time of sale Most of these rebates and allowances
are in the Established Pharmaceuticals and Nutnitional Products
segments Abbott provides rebates to state agencies that admints-
ter the Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC), wholesalers, group purchasing
orgamizations, and other government agencies and private entities
Rebate amounts are usually based upon the volume of purchases
using contractual or statutory prices for a product Factors used
n the rebate calculations include the identification of which
products have been sold subject to a rebate, which customer or
government agency price terms apply, and the estimated lag time
between sale and payment of a rebate Using historical trends,
adjusted for current changes, Abbott estimates the amount of the
rebate that will be paid, and records the liability as a reduction of
gross sales when Abbott records its snle of the product Settlement
of the rebate generally occurs from one to six months after sale
Abbott regularly analyzes the historical rebate trends and makes
adjustments to reserves for changes in trends and terms of rebate
programs Rebates and chargebacks charged against gross sales

in 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to approximately $2 0 billion,

$1 9 billion and $1 7 billion, respectively, or 16 1 percent, 16 0 percent
and 16 8 percent, respectively, based on gross sales of approxi-
mately $12 5 billion, $11 8 billion and $10 1 bilhon, respectively,
subject to rebate A one-percentage point increase in the percentage
of rebates to related gross sales would decrease net «ales by
approximately $125 million in 2013 Abbott considers a one-per-
centage point increase to be a reasonably likely increase in the
percentage of rebates to related gross sales Other allowances
charged against gross sales were approximately $150 rullien,
$149 mullion and $117 mullion for cash discounts in 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively, and $208 mullien, $199 million and $170 nuilion
for returns 1n 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively Cash discounts
are known withint 15 to 30 days of sale, and therefore can be
reliably estimated Returns can be relhiably estimated because
Abbott’s historical returns are low, and because «ales returns
terms and other sales terms have remained relatively unchanged
for several periods
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Management analyzes the adequacy of ending rebate accrual
balances each quarter In the domestic nutritional business,
management uses both internal and external data available

to esumate the level of inventory tn the distribution channel
Management has access to several large customers’ inventory
management data, and for other customers, utihizes data from a
third party that measures time on the retail shelf These sources
allow management to make rehable estimates of inventory in the
distnbution channel Except for a transition period before or
after a change in the suppher for the WIC business in a state,
inventory in the distnibution channel does not vary substantially
Management also estimates the states’ processing lag time based
on claims data In addition, internal processing time 1s a factor in
estimating the accrual In the WIC business, the state where the
sale 1s made, which 1s the determining factor for the applicable
price, 1s rehably determinable Estimates are required for the
amount of WIC sales within each state where Abbott has the
WIC business External data sources utilized for that estimate are
participant data from the US Department of Agriculture (USDA),
which admimisters the WIC program, participant data from some
of the states, and internally administered market research

The USDA has been making its data available for many years
Internal data includes historical redemption rates and pricing
data At December 31, 2013, Abbott had WIC business in 23 states

Historically, adjustments to prior years’ rebate accruals have not
been material to net income Abbott employs various techniques
to verify the accuracy of claims subnutted to it, and where possi-
ble, works with the orgamizations submutting claims to gain insight
into changes that mighe affect the rebate amounts For government
agency programs, the calculation of 3 rebate involves interpreta-
tions of relevant regulations, which are subject to challenge or
change in interpretation

Income Taxes—Abbott operates in numerous countries where

Its iIncome tax returns are subject to audits and adjustments
Because Abbott operates globally, the nature of the audit items are
often very complex, and the objectives of the government auditors
can result n a tax on the same mcome 1n more than one country
Abbott employs internal and external tax professionals to mini-
mize audit adjustment amounts where possible In accordance
with the accounting rules relating to the measurement of tax
contingencies, n order to recognize an uncertan tax benefit, the
taxpayer must be more hkely than not of sustaiming the position,
and the measurement of the benefit 1y calculated as the largest
amount that 1s more than 50 percent likely to be reahized upon
reselution of the benefit Application of these ruies requires a
significant amount of judgnient In the US, Abbott"s federal
income tax returns through 2010 are settled except for three
items, and the income tax returns for years after 2010 are open
Abbott does not record deferred income taxes on earnings
reinvested indefinmitely in foreign subsidiaries

Pension and Post-Employment Benefits—Abbott offers pension
benefits and post-employment health care to many of ity employees
Abbott engages outside actuaries to assist in the determunation

of the obligations and costs under these programs Abbott must
develop long-term assumptions, the most sigmficant of which are
the health care cost trend rates, discount rates and the expected
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return on plan assets The discount rates used to measure
habihties were determined based on high-quality fixed income
securities that match the duration of the expected retiree benefits
The health care cost trend rates represent Abbott's expected
annual rates of change in the cost of health care benefits and 1s

a forward projection of health care costs as of the measurement
date A dfference between the assumed rates and the actual rates,
which will not be known for decades, can be sigmficant in relation
to the obhgations and the annual cost recorded for these pro-
grams Low interest rates have significantly increased actuanal
loswses for these plans At December 31, 2013, pretax net actuarial
losses and prior service costs and {credits) recognized in
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for Abbott™s
defined benefit plans and medtcal and dental plans were losses

of $1 8 billion and $82 mullion, respectively Actuanial losses and
gains are amortized over the remaining service attribution periods
of the employees under the corndor method, 1n accordance with
the rules for accountig for post-employment benefits Differences
berween the expected long-term return on plan assets and the
actual annual return are amortized over a five-year period

Note 12 to the consohidated financial statements describes the
impact of a one-percentage point change in the health care cost
trend rate, however, there can be no certainty that a change
would be limuted to only one percentage point

Valuation of Intangible Assets—Abbott has acquired and continues
to acquire significant intangible assets that Abbott records at fair
value Transactions involving the purchase or sale of intangible
assets occur with some frequency between companies 1n the
health care field and valuations are usually based on a discounted
cash flow analysis The discounted cash flow model requires
assumptions about the timing and amount of future net cash flows,
risk, the cost of capital, termuinal values and market participants
Each of these factors can sigmificantly affect the value of the
intangible asset Abbott engages independent valuation experts
who review Abbott’s critical assumptions and calculations

for acquisitions of significant intangbles Abbott reviews defi-
nite-hived intangible assets for impairment each quarter using an
undiscounted net cash flows approach If the undiscounted cash
flows of an intangible asset are less than the carrying value of an
itangible asset, the intangible asset 1s written down to its far
value, which 15 usually the discounted cash flow amount Where
cash flows cannot be identified for an mdividual asset, the review
1s apphed at the lowest group level for which cash flows are
wenafisble Goodwill and indefinite-lived mtangible assets, w hich
relate to in-process research and development acquired in a
business combination, are reviewed for impawrment annually

or when an event that could result in an impairment occurs

At December 31, 2013, goodwill amounted to $98 billion and
intangibles amounted to $5 7 bithon, and amoruzation expense
for intangible assets amounted to $791 nullion in 2013, $795 nullion
i 2012 and $884 mullion 1n 2011 There were no impairments of
goodwill in 2013, 2012 or 2011 In 2012 and 2011, Abbott recorded
imparrment charges of $69 mullion and $125 million, respectvely,
for certain research and development assets due to changes in the
projected development and regulatory imelines for the projects
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Litigation—Abbott accounts for litigation losses 1n accordance with
FASB Accounting Standards Codification No 450, “Contingencies ”
Under ASC No 450, loss contingency previsions are recorded for
probable losses at management's best estimate of a loss, or when a
best estumate cannot be made, a munimum loss contingency amount
is recorded These estimates are often initially developed substan-
tially earlter than the uitimate loss 15 known, and the estimates are
refined each accounting period as addinonal informanon becomes
known Accordingly, Abbott 1s often initially unable to develop a
best estimate of loss, and therefore the minimum amount, which
could be zero, 15 recorded As information becomes known, either
the mimimum loss amount 1s increased, resulting in additional loss
provisions, or a best estimate can be made, also resulting i addi-
tienal loss provisions Occasionally, a best estimate amount 1+
changed to a lower amount when events result in an expectation
of a more favorable outcome than previously expected Abbott
estimates the range of possible loss to be from approximately

$70 million to $90 mullion for us tegal preceedings and environ-
mental exposures Accruals of approximately $80 million have been
recorded at December 31, 2013 for these proceedings and exposures
These accruals represent management’s best estumate of probable
loss, as defined by FASB ASC No 450, “Contingencies”

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS :

SALES

The following table details the components of sales growth
by reportable segment for the last two years

Total Components of % Change

% Change Price Yolume  Exchange
Total Net Sales
2013 vs 2012 16 08) 45 21
2012 vs 2011 04 04) 40 (32)
Total US
2013 vs 2012 o8} 1oy 02 -
2012 vs 2011 07 08 01} —_
Total International
2013 vs 2012 27 [(0F:3] 65 (30)
2012 vs 2011 03 ©9) 57 (45)
Established Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2013 vs 2012 (29 ©4) 11 (36}
2012 vs 2011 {44) (13) 34 (6 5)
Nutritional Products Segment
2013 vs 2012 43 32 22 an
2012 vs 2011 79 15 44 o =
hagnostic Products Segment
2013 vs 2012 59 (25) 108 24
2012 vs 2011 40 a4 87 33)
Vascular Proeducts Segment
2013 vs 2012 {19) {6 2) 62 (19)
2012 vs 2011 79 (52) (©04) 23) !

The increases in Total Net Sales in 2013 and 2012 reflect umt
growth, partially offset by the impact of unfavorable foreign
exchange The price declines related to Vascular Products sales
m 2013 and 2012 primaniy reflect pricing pressure on drug
eluting stents and other coronary products as a result of market
competition In major markets
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A comparison of significant product and product group sales s as
follows Percent changes are versus the prior year and are based
on unrounded numbers

Percent Percent
(dollars 1n millions) 2013 Change 2012 Change
Total Established
Pharmaceuticals
Key Emerging Markets $2,358 ] $2,324 4
Other Markets 2,616 @ 2,797 (10}
Nutnitionals —
International Pediatric
Nutritionals 2,257 9 2,075 8
U§ Pediatric Nutrimionals 1,508 - 1,505 t4
International Adult
Nurtitionals 1,601 8 1489 4
US Adult Nutnitionals 1374 ()] 1392 6
Diagnostics -
Immunochemstry 3,458 5 3,279 4
Vascular Products (1) —
Drug Eluting Stents {(DES)
and Bioresorbable Vascular
Scaffold (BVS) products 1,563 (#3] 1,599 3
Other Coronary Products 579 3 598 [6))
Endovascular 475 5 452 1

(1) Other Coronary Products include primanty guidewires and balloon catheters
Endovasculzr includes vesscl closure carotid stents and other penipheral products

Excluding the unfavorable effect of exchange, total Estabhished
Pharmaceutical Products sales increased 07 percent in 2013 and
21 percent in 2012 The Established Pharmaceutical Products
segment 1s focused on 14 key emerging markets including India,
Russia, China and Brazil Excluding the effect of exchange, saies
m these 14 key emerging markets increased 6 3 percent in 2013
and 12 8 percent 1n 2012 as macroeconemic and market pressures
1 various emerging markets negatively affected 2013 growth
Excluding the effect of exchange, sales in Established
Pharmaceuticals’ other markets decreased 4 percent in 2013 and
5 6 percent 1n 2012 These declines in the Other Markets category
reflect unfavorable marker conditions, including the continued
effects of European austerity measures and 2012 Japanese
pricing actions

Excluding the unfavorable effect of exchange, total Nutritional
Products sales increased 54 percent m 2013 and 8 9 percent in 2012
International Pediatric Nutritional sales inereased m 2013 and 2012
due primarily to volume growth in developing countries A suppli-
er’s recall of product in August 2013 1n certain mnternational markets
negatively impacted International Pediatric Nutritional sales in the
third and fourth quarters of 2013 While there were no health 1ssues
associated with this supplier recall and the supplier subsequently
determined that the product had been safe for consumption, this
event created sigmficant disruption 1n these markets Abbott
expects this sales disruption to continue to negatively impact
International Pediatric Nutritional growth in the first half of 2014
U S Pedatnic sales were flat in 2013 due to lower formula share,
partially offset by higher shipments of toddler products U'S
Pediatrsc Nutritional sales tn 2012 reflect market share gamns for
Stmulac and unit growth for PediaSure
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The 2013 and 2012 increases in International Adult Nutnitional
sales are due primanily to volume growth n developing countries
and were negatively impacted by the effect of the relatively stron-
ger US dollar The 1 percent decline in 2013 U S Adult Nutnittonal
sales reflects Abbott’s exit from certain non-core business lines as
part of the business’ margin improvement initiative, most of the
sales decline resulting from this exit was offset by higher Ensure
revenues The increase 1n 2012 US Adult Nutnitional sales reflects
umt growth for the Ensure and Glucerna products

Excluding the unfavorable effect of exchange, total Diagnostic
Products sales increased 8 3 percent in 2013 and 73 percent in
2012 The sales increases reflect unit growth across geographical
regrons 2013 and 2012 sales of immunochemistry products,

the largest category 1n this segment, reflect continued execution
of Abbott’s strategy to deliver integrated solutions to large
healthcare customers

Excluding the unfavorable effect of exchange, total Vascular
Products sales were flat in 2013 and decreased 5 6 percent in 2012
In 2013, growth 1n international markets, driven by continued
share gains in key geographies of XIENCE Xpedition and Absorb,
was offset by declines in the U S market due to the neganve
impact of pricing pressure and a dechine 1n procedures due to market
conditions, as well as the expected decline of certmin royalty
revenues In 2012, the decrease in Vascular Products sales was
due to pricing pressure, as well as the expected winding down

of royalty and supply agreements related to certain third-parcy
products, including Promus Excluding this royalty and supply
agreement revenue in both penods and the unfavorable effect of
exchange, Vascular Products sales increased 3 4 percent in 2012

Abbott has periodicaily sold product rights to non-strategic
products and has recorded the related gains in net sales in accor-
dance with Abbott's revenue recognition policies as discussed in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements Related ner sales
were not sigmificant in 2013, 2012 and 2011

The expiration of licenses and patent protection can affect the
future revenues and operating income of Abbott There are
currently na sigmificant patent or license expirations in the next
three years thar are expected to affect Abbott

OPERATING EARNINGS

Gross profit margins were 50 4 percent of net sales 1n 2013,

50 6 percent tn 2012 and 491 percent in 2011 The gross profit
margn 1n 2013 remamed relatively unchanged versus the pnor
year as improved margins in the Nutritional and Diagnostics
Products segments were offset by margin dechnes in Established
Pharmaceuticals and Vascular Products due to pricing pressures
and unfavorable product mix as well as the impact of unfavorable
foreign exchange across segments The increase in the gross profit
margin 1n 2012 was impacted by improved gross margins across
all reportable segments as a result of cost reduction imitiatives,
the impact of exchange and favorable product nux

In the US, states recerve price rebates from manufacturers

of infant formula under the federally subsidized Special
Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and
Children There are also rebate programs for pharmaceutical
products in numerous countries These rebate programs continue
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to have a negative effect on the gross profit margins of the
Nutritional and Established Pharmaceutical Products segments

Research and development expense was $1 452 billion in 2013,

$1 544 billion 1n 2012 and $1 512 billion 1n 2011 and represented
260 percentdecrease wn 2013, and a 2 1 percent increase m 2012
The 2013 decrease primarily reflects the incurrence of restructur-
g and asset impairment charges in 2012 which did not recur

1n 2013 In 2013, research and development expenditures totaled
$336 muillion for the Vascular Products segment, $416 million

for the Diagnostics Products segment, $239 million for the
Established Pharmaceutical Products segment and $188 rullion
for the Nutritional Products segment

Selling, general and admimstrative expenses decreased 6 8 percent
11 2013 and mncreased 11 percent in 2012 The 2013 decrease
reflects the transfer of certam 2012 corporate costs to AbbVie in
the separation as well as certain information technology and other
back office support costs that are being charged to AbbVie 1n 2013
under transitton services agreements Prudent cost management
and a reduction in restructuring costs also contributed to the
decrease The 2012 increase primanly reflects increased seliing
and marketing support for new products and geographical
expansion, largely offset by prudent cost management

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

1n August 2013, Abbott acquired 100 percent of IDEV Technologies,
net of debt, for $210 milhion, 1n cash The acquisition of IDEV
Technologies expands Abbott’s endovascular portfelio The alloca-
tion of the fair value of the acquisition resulted in non-deductible
acquired in-process research and development of approximately
$170 million which 1s accounted for as an indefinite-hived intangible
asset unul regulatory approval or discontinuation, non-deductible
definite-lived intangible assets of approximately $66 million, non-
deductible goodwill of approximately $123 mullion and net deferred
tax habihives of $56 milhon Acquired intangible assets consist of
developed technology and are being amortized over 11 years

In August 2013, Abbott acquired 100 percent of GptiMedica for
$260 mullion, 1n cash, plus additional payments up to $150 nullion
to be made upon completion of certain development, regulatory
and sales milestones The acquisition of OptuMedica provides
Abbott with an immediate entry point into the laser assisted
cataract surgery market The aliocavon of the fair value of the
acquisition resulted 1n non-deductible definite-hved intangible
assets of approximately $160 nullion, non-deductible acquired
n-process research and development of approximately $60 nuihion
which 1s accounted for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until
regulatory approval or discontinuation, non-deductible goodwill
of approximately $151 million, net deferred tax habilities of

$70 mulhion and contingent consideration of approxamately

$70 million The fair value of the contingent consideration

was determuned based on an independent appraisal Acquired
intangible assets consint primartly of developed technology that
1s being amortized over 18 years

The prelminary allocations of the fair value of these acquisitions
will be finalized when valuations are completed Had the above
acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous year, consol-
dated net sales and income would not have been significantly
different from reported amounts
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RESTRUCTURINGS

In 2013, Abbott management approved a plan to reduce costs and
improve efficiencies across various functional areas as well as

a plan to streamline certain manufactuning operations 1n order

to reduce costs and improve efficiencies in Abbott’s established
pharmaceuticals business In 2012, Abbott management approved
plans to streamline various commercial operauons wn order to
reduce costs and improve efficiencies in Abbott's core dhagnostics,
established pharmaceutical and nutritionals businesses Abbott
recorded employee related severance charges of approximately
$78 mulhion an 2013 and $167 mulhon 1n 2012 Additional charges
of approximately $4 mllton and $22 milhon were also recorded
in 2013 and 2012, respectively, primar;ly for asset impairments
Approximately $35 mullion 1n 2013 and $70 nullion 1n 201215
recorded 1n Cost of products sold and approximately $47 million
in 2013 and $119 million 1n 2012 1s recorded as Selling, general
and admunistrative expense

In 2013 and prior years, Abbott management approved plans to
realign its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufacturing
operations and selected domestic and mternational commereal
and research and development operations in order to reduce

costs In 2013, Abbott recorded employee weverance charges of
approximately $11 nullton In 2011, Abbott recorded charges of
approximately $194 nuthon reflecting the impairment of manufac-
tunng facilines and other assets, employee severance and other
related charges Approximately $11 million in 2013 and $18 million
1in 2011 15 classified as Cost of products sold The remaining 2011
charge of $176 muillion related to businesses transferred to AbbVie
and 15 being recognized 1n the results of discontinued operations
An additional $41 maliion, $110 mullion and $25 milhon were
recorded 1n 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, relating to these
restructurings, prumanly for accelerated depreciation

In 2012, Abbott recorded a charge of approximately $150 million
for employee severance and contractual obligations, primarnily
related to the exit from a research and development facility
These charges related to businesses transferred to AbbVie and
have been recognized n the results of discontinued operations

In 2011, Abbott management approved plans to streamline global
manufacturing operations, reduce overall costs, and improve
efficiencies in Abbott's core diagnostic business In 2011, a charge
of $28 million was recerded in Cost of products sold In addition,
charges of approximately $16 milhion and $42 million were
recorded w 2012 and 2011, primarily for accelerated depreciatton
and product transfer costs

INTEREST EXPENSE

1n 2013, interest expense decreased due to a lower level of
borrowings, which resulted from the transfer of approximately
$14 6 billion of debt to AbbVic as part of the separation In 2012,
interest expense mcluded bridge facility fees related to the
separation of AbbVie from Abbott
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CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE AND
OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSE, NET

Prior to January 1, 2011, the accounts of foreign subsidiaries were
consoldated based on a fiscal year ended November 30 due to the
time needed to consolidate these subsidiaries Effective January 1,
2011, the one month lag 1n the consolidation of the accounts of
foreign subsidiaries was ehminated and the year-end of foreign
subsidiaries was changed to December 31 Abbott believes that the
change 1n accounting principle related to the elumination of the
one month reporting lag 1s preferable because 1t results in more
contemporaneous reporting of the results of foreign subsidiaries
In accordance with applicable accounnng hterature, a change

in subsidiaries’ year-end 1s treated as a change 1n accounting
principle and requires retrospective applicanion A charge of

$100 milhon was recorded to Other (income) expense, net n 2011
to recogmze the cumulative immaterial impacts to 2009 and 2010

Other (income) expense, net, for 2013 includes gains on sales of
nvestments, 2012 inciudes income of approximately $40 million
from the resolution of a contractual agreement

NET LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT

In 2012, Abbott extinguished $77 billion of long-term debt and
incurred a cost of $1 35 bilhon to extinguish this debe, net of gains
from the unwinding of interest rate swaps related to the debt

TAXES ON EARNINGS

The income tax rates on earnings from continuing operations
were 5 5 percent in 2013, (89 7) percentn 2012 and 8 9 percent

1n 2011 2013 taxes on earmings from continuing operations melude
$234 million of tax benefit related to the reselution of various

tax positions from previous years In addition, as a result of the
American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 signed nto law 1n January
2013, Abbott recorded a 1ax benefit to taxes on continuing opera-
uons of approxtmately $103 million i 2013 for the retroactive
extension of the research tax credit and the look-through rules of
section 954{c)(6) of the Internal Revenue Code to the beginming of
2012 Taxes on earnings from continuing operations in 2012 reflect
the $472 million effect of the tax rate applied to Abbott’s net debt
extinguishment loss, as well as the recogmition of $212 mulhon of
tax benefits as a result of the favorable resolution of various tax
positions pertaining to a prior year Taxes on earnings from con-
tinuing operations 1n 2011 reflect the recogmition of $168 millhion
of tax benefits as a result of the favorable resolution of various tax
posittons pertaimng to prior years Exclusive of these discrete
itetns, the effective rates are lower than the US federat statutory
rate of 35 percent due primarily to the benefit of lower tax rates
and tax exemptions on foreign income that reduced the tax rates
by 180, 75 7, and 14 9 percentage ponts 1n 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively The tax rate reductions are primanly derived from
operations 1n Puerto Rico, Switzerland, Treland and Singapore
where Abbott benefits from a combination of favorable statutory
tax rules, tax rulings, grants, and exemptions See Note 13 to the
consohdated financial statements for a full reconc:hation of the
effective tax rate to the US federal statutory rate

In 2014 Abbott expects to repatriate approximately $2 billion of
2014 earmings generated outside the US Abbott alse expects to be
able to accelerate the utithzation of deferred tax assets and thereby

reduce the cash taxes due in the U $ on this repatniation to no
more than $150 milhen This repatriation 1s projected to resultin
approximately $550 to $600 million of additional tax expense in
Abbott’s 2014 Statement of Earnings Excluding the tax effect of
this repatriation, Abbott expects to apply an annual effective rate
of approximately 19 percent to 2014 results

SEPARATION OF ABBVIE INC

On November 28, 2012, Abbott’s board of directors declared

a special dividend distribution of all of the outstanding shares of
common stock of AbbVie Inc (AbbVie), the company formed to
hold Abbott's research-based proprietary pharmaceuticals busi-
ness For each Abbott common share held at the close of business
on December 12, 2012, Abbott shareholders received one share of
AbbVie stock on January 1, 2013 Abbott has received a ruling from
the Internal Revenue Service that the separation qualifies as a tax-
free distnbution to Abbott and its U 8 shareholders for US federal
InCome tax purposes

The historical operating results of the research-based proprietary
pharmaceuticals business prior to separation are excluded from
Earnings from Continuing Operations and are presented on

the Earnmgs from Discontinued Operations hine Discontinued
operations include the results of AbbVie's business except for
certain corporate overhead costs and certain costs associated

with transition services that will be provided by Abbott to AbbVie
Discontinued operations also include other costs incurred by Abbott
to separate AbbVie as well as an allocation of mterest assuming

a uniform ratio of consolidated debt to equity for all of Abbou’s
histonical operations The assets, habilities, and cash flows of the
research-based proprietary pharmaceuticals business are included
n Abbott’s Consolidated Balance Sheet and 1ts Consehdated
Statements of Cash Flows for pertods prior to January 1, 2013

The following 1s a summary of the assets and hiabilities transferred
to AbbVie as part of the separanion on January 1, 2013

(in billions)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $59

Investments 22

Trade recevables less allowances 32

Inventories 07

Prepaid expenses deferred income taxes

and other current receivables 29

Net property and equipment 22

Intangible assets net of amortization z3

Goodwill 61

Deferred income taxes and other assets 11
266

Liabilities

Short-term borrowings 10

Trade accounts payable and other current halmlhoes 52

Long-term debt 146

Post-employment obligations

deferred income taxes and other long-term Labilities 31
239

Net Assets Transferred to AbbVie Inc $ 27
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In addition, approximately $1 billion of accumulated other
comprehensive losses, net of income taxes, primarily related to
the penston and other benefit plan net habihties as well as foreign
translation was transferred to AbbVie

In 2013, discontinued operations mncludes a favorable adjustment
to tax expense of $193 million as a resuit of the resolution of
various tax positions pertaming to 2010 related to AbbVie's
operations Summarized financial information for discontinued
operations for 2012 and 2011 15 as follows

Year Ended December 31

(n mulliens) 2012 2011
Net sales $18,380 $17444
Earnings before taxes 5,958 3,963
Taxes on earmngs 574 361
Net earnings 5384 3,602

Abbott and AbbVie entered into transitional services agreements
prior to the separanon pursuant to which Abbott and AbbVie are
providing various services to each other on an interim transitional
basis Transition services may be provided for up to 24 months with
an opuon for a one-year extension by the recipient Services being
provided by Abbott include certamn informanen technology and
back office support Billings by Abbott under these transitional
services agreements are recorded as a reduction of the costs to
provide the respective service in the apphicable expense category in
the Consolidated Statement of Earmings This transitional support
will enable AbbVie to establish 1ts stand-alone processes for various
activities that were previously provided by Abbott and doees not
constitute sigmficant continwing support of AbbVie’s operattons

For a small portion of AbbVie's operations, the legal transter

of AbbVie's assets (net of hiabilities) did not oceur with the
separation of AbbVie on January 1, 2013 due to the time required
to transfer marketing authorizations and other regulatory
requirements 1n each of these countries Under the terms of the
separation agreement with Abbott, AbbVie 1s subject to the risks
and entitled to the benefits generated by these operations and
assets The majority of these operations were transferred to
AbbVie 1n 2013 with the remainder expected to be transferred in
2014 These assets and liabilities have been presented as held for
disposition in the Consolidated Balance Sheet At December 31,
2013, the assets and habilities held for disposition consist of inven-
tories of $243 mulhon, trade accounts receivable of $163 mllion,
other current assets of $32 mullion, equipment of $28 milhion,
other assets of $38 million, trade accounts payable and accrued
habilities of $386 nullion and other hiabihties of 87 mullion
Abbotrt's obligation to transfer the net assets held for disposition
to AbbVie of $111 mullion 15 included 1n Other accrued hiabilities

Abbott has retained all habihties for all US federal and foreign
IMcome taxes on income prior to the separation, as well as certan
nen-incoime taxes atrrnbutable to AbbVie's business AbbVie gener-
ally will be lable for ail other taxes attnburable to i1ts business

In connectton with the separation, Abbott has adjusted 1ts employee
stock compensation awards and separated 1ts defined benefit
programs for pensions and post-employment medical and dental
benefit plans ee notes 8 and 12 for additional information
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS

Abbott currently has numerous pharmaceutical, medical device,
diagnostic and nutnitional products in development

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

In the Established Pharmaceuticals segment, the development
process focuses on rthe geographic expansion and continuous
improvement of the segment’s exwsting products to provide benefits
to patients and customers As Established Pharmaceuticals does
not actively pursue primary research, development usually begins
with work on existing products or after the acquisition of an
advanced stage licensing opportunmty

Depending upen the product, the phases of development
may include

* Drug product development

+ Phase I bioequivalence studies to compare a future Estabhished
Pharmaceutical’s brand with an already marketed compound
with the same active pharmaceutical ingredient (APL)

+ Phase II studies to test the efficacy of benefits 1n a small
group of patients

= Phase I11 studies to broaden the testing to a wider population
that reflects the actual medical use

+ Phase IV and other post-marketing studies to obtan new chini-
cal use data on existing products within approved indications

The speaific requirements (e g scope of clinical trials) for
obtaining regulatory approval vary across different countnes

and geographic regions The process may range from one year

for a bicequivalence study project to 6 or more years for complex
formulations, new indications, or geographic expansion in speaific
countries such as China

In the Diagnostics segment, the phases of the research and
development process mclude

« Discovery which focuses onidentification of a product that
will address a speaific therapeuuc area, platform, or unmet
chinecal need,

« Concept/Feasibility during which the matenals and manufac-
turing processes are evaluated, testing may include product
characterization and analysis 1s performed to confirm clinseal
utihity, and

« Development during which extensive testing 1s performed to
demonstrate that the product meets specified design require-
ments and that the design specifications conform to user needs
and intended uses

The regulatory requirements for diagnostic products vary across
different countries and geographic regions In the US, the FDA
classifies diagnostic products into classes (1, 11, or II1) and the
classification determines the regulatory process for approval
While the Diagnostics segment has productsin all three classes,
the vast majority of its products are categonized as Class 1 or Class
It Submussion of a separate regulatory filing 15 not required for
Class I products Class II devices typically require pre-market
nottfication to the FDA through a regulatory filing known as a
510(k) submussion Meost Class 1 products are subject to the
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FDA’s Pre-Marketing Approval {PMA) requirements Other Ciass
111 products, such as those used to screen blood, require the sub-
misston and approval of a Biological License Application (BLA)

In the EU, diagnostic products are also categenzed into different
categories and the regulatory process, which is governed by the
Eurcpean InVitre Diagnostic Medical Device Directive, depends
upon the category Certain product categories require review and
approval by an independent company, known as a Notified Body,
before the manufacturer can affix a CE mark to the product to
show comphance wath the Directive Other products only require
a self-cernification process

In the Vascular segment, the research and development process
begins with research on a specific technology that 1s evaluated
for feasibility and commercial viability If the research program
passes that hurdle, it moves forward into development The
development process includes evaluation and setection of a
product design, completion of climical trials to test the product’s
safety and efficacy, and validation of the manufacturing process
to demonstrate 1ts repeatabihity and abihity to consistently meet
pre-determined specifications

Simular to the diagnostic products discussed above, inthe US,
vascular products are classified as Class I, I1, or 1T Most of
Abbott’s vascular products are classified as Class 1T devices that
follow the 510(k) regulatory process or Class 111 devices that are
subject to the PMA process

In the EU, vascular products are also categonzed into different
classes and the regulatory process, which 1s governed by the
European Medical Device Directive, varies by class Each preduct
must bear a CE mark to show comphance with the Directive
Some products require submusston of a design dossier to the
appropriate regulatory authonty for review and approval prior

to CE marking of the device For other products, the company 15
required to prepare a techmcal file which includes testing results
and chinical evaluations but can self-certify its ability to apply

the CE mark to the product Qutside the US and the EU, the
regulatory requirements vary across different countries and regions

After approval and commercial taunch of some vascular products,
post-market trials may be conducted erther due to a conditional
requirement of the regulatory market approval or with the
objective of proving product superionty

In the Nutritional segment, the research and development process
generally focuses on idenufymyg and developing ingredients and
products that address the nutritional needs of particular popula-
tions (e g, infants, athletes) or patients (e g, people with diabetes)
Depending upon the country and/or region, if clainis regarding a
product's efficacy will be made, chinical studies typically must be
conducted Most other product development, such as a product
form change from liquid to powder, generally does not necessitate
chinical studies
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Inthe U} S, the FDA requires that it be nonfied of proposed new
formulations and formulation or packaging changes related to
infant formula products Prior to the launch of an infant formula
or product packaging change, the company 15 required to obtain
the FDA's confirmation that it has no objections to the proposed
product or packaging For other nutrition products, notification
or pre-approval from the FDA 1s not required unless the product
includes a new food additive In some countries, regulatory
approval may be required for certain nutnitional products,
cluding infant formula and medical nutrnitional products

AREAS OF FOCUS

In 2014 and beyond, Abbott’s sigmficant areas of therapeutic
focus will include the following:

Established Pharmaceuticals — Abbott 1s actively working on
development plans for about 20 - 30 key brands Depending on
the product, the development activities focus on new data,
markets, formulations, combinations, or indications Abbott
focuses on bullding country-specific portfolios made up of global
and tocal pharmaceurical brands that best meet each local market’s
needs Over the next several years, Established Pharmaceuticals
will work to expand its product portfolio in its key markets through
further geographic expansion of existing brands, new product
enhancements, and strategic hcensing activities

Vascular — Ongoing projects in the pipeline include

» XIENCE Xpedition, our latest drug-eluting stent (DES) with
enhanced deliverability and an expanded v1ze matrix Itutlizes
the XIENCE PRIME stent, everolimus and biocompauble coat-
ing technology but incorporates new catheter technology for
improved dehverability XIENCE Xpedition recesved US regula-
tory approval in December 2012 and 1s also available 1n Europe
and parts of Asia and Latin America In 2013, Abbott continued
to expand DES wize offerings XIENCE Xpedition 48 receved
CE regulatory approval in May 2013, making it the longest
length DES among major brands XIENCE Xpedition 20 mm
diameter received CE regulatory approval in December 2013,
making it the smallest diameter DES among major brands

« Absorb, the world's first drug eluting broresorbable vascular
scaffold (BVS) device for the treatment of coronary artery
disease that 15 gradually resorbed into the vessel wall In 2013,
Abbott made sigmificant progress in enrolling patients in clinical
trials for regulatory approval in the United States and China,
and completed enrollment in trials in Japan in December 2013

* MuraClip device for the treatment of mutral regurgitation (MR)
In October 2013, MutraClip received U S regulatory approval
for panents with sigmficant symptomatic degenerative MR who
are at prohibitive risk for mitral valve surgery MuraClip 1s also
available in Europe, parts of Asia, the Middle East and Latin
Amernica Abbott expects to seek product approval 10 additional
markets in 2014 In addition, Abbott will contimue chinucal
development of the AMitraClip therapy including the COAPT
trial, a landmark, prospective, randomized trial in the United
States that will evaluate the impact of MitraClip treatment on
the progression of heart failure
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« SUPERA Vertas self-expanding nitinol stent system which was
acquired as part of the acquisition of IDEV Technologies in
August 2013 With 1ts proprietary mnterwoven wire technology,
SUPERA Veritas 1s designed based on biomimetic principles to
mumtc the body's natural movement It receved CE Mark 1n
Europe for treating blockages 1n blood vessels due to peripheral
artery disease (PAD) Inthe US, SUPERA Veritas s cleared
only for the treatment of bibary strictures (nartowing of a bile
ducy) related to cancer It 1s currently being reviewed by the
U S Food and Drug Admimstratien under a Premarket Approval
applicatton for treatment of the superficial femoral and proxi-
mal popliteal arteries, which are the main arteries in the thigh
that supply blood to lower extrermities Abbott plans to conunue
development of SUPERA's s1ze matrix and next generation
delivery system

* Coronary and endovascular ginde wires Abbott’s HT Paiot and
HT Progress guide wire families received FDA clearance for the
Chronie Total Occlusions (CTO) indication 1n January 2013

Medical Optics — Abbott 1s developing a number of new products
for patients undergoing cataract surgery, which are designed

to improve physician efficiency and patient outcomes In 2013,
Abbott’s Tecmis Toric monofocal intraocular lens, which combines
the optical qualities of the Tecrs design wiath astigmatism
correction, was approved in the US, China and Japan In addition,
a preloaded versien of the Tecnis I piece monofocal IOL was
approved in the US, Canada and India and a preloaded version of
the Tecns 1 prece multifocal IOL was approved w1 Canada, Europe
and Japan Preloaded technology enables insertion of the Tecmis 1
ptece IOL with an easy to use, disposable 1nsertion system Other
products that recewved regulatory approval in Japan included the
Tecnis OptiBlue monofocal IOL in a standard cartridge insertion
wystem as well as the preloaded version The 1Design advanced
vision diagnostic and LASIK treatment planning system, previ-
ously approved 1n Europe in 2012, received approval im Canada
and a number of Latin American and Asian countries In 2014,
Abbott plans to continue to work to introduce new products,
ncluding the launch of new pre-loaded 10Ls, which are designed
to improve the ease of use for the cataract surgeon

Molecular Diagnostics — Various new molecular in vitro diagnostic
(I1VD) products, including oncology and infectious discase assays
and a next generation mstrument system are 1n various stages of
development and commercialization Abbott's companton diag-
nostic test for an ALK gene rearrangement test for non-small-cell
lung cancer has been approved in more than 69 countries around
the world and now includes options for automated processing and
image analysis Abbott s companion diagnostic program continues
to expand and imcludes collaborative efforts with mulnple magor
pharmaceutical companies An automated assay to genotype
HCV-infected patients to aid in the choice of an appropnate
therapy was approved by the FDA [n addition, automated IVD
assays for Flu A/B/RSV, C difficle, and VanR were launched in
many countries around the world Assays for infectious diseases
including MTB and MTB drug resistance and for oncology includ-
ing KRAS and BRAF mutation detection are in development
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Core Laboratory Diagnostics — Abbott 1s working on the develop-
ment of next-generation blood screening, hematology, and
immunochemistry instrument systems, as well as assays in various
areas including infectious disease, cardiac care, metabolics, oncol-
ogy, and automation sclutions to increase efficiency in laboratories

Diabetes Care — In the third quarter of 2013, Abbott received

CE Mark in Europe for 1ts FreeStyle Precision Neo momtoring
system, a new Lcon-driven system with visual glucose trend
indicators and msulin logging In the second half of 2013, Abbott
receved both CE Mark in Europe and FDA approval for Preciston
Pro, a hospital glucose monitering system whuch provides
improved accuracy and dual-band wireless access to immediate
test results Abbott is also developing a new sensor based system
that it expects to submut for approval in Europe in 2014

Nutrttion — Abbott s focusing its research and development
spend on six benefit platforms that span the pediatric, adult and
performance nutrition areas immunity, cogmtion, lean body mass,
inflammation, metabolism and tolerance Numerous new products
that build on advances 1n these benefit platforms are currently
under development, including chinical outcome testung, and are
expected to be launched over the coming years

Given the diversity of Abbott's business, 1ts intention to remain

a broad-based healthcare company and the numerous sources

for potential future growth, no individual project 1s expected

to be matenial to cash flows or results of operations over the next
five years Factors considered included research and development
expenses projected to be mmcurred for the project over the next
year relative to Abbott's total research and development expenses
as well as qualitative factors, such as marketplace perceptions
and impact of a new product on Abbott’s overall market position
There were no delays in Abbott’s 2013 research and development
activities that are expected to have a matenal tmpact on operations

While the aggregate cost to complete the numerous projects
currently in development 1+ expected to be matenal, the total
cost to complete will depend upon Abbott’s ability to successfully
complete each project, the rate at which each project advances,
and the ultimate nming for completon Given the potential for
sigmificant delays and the high rate of falure inherent in the
development of pharmaceutical and medical device products

and technologies, it 1s not possible to accurately estimate the total
cost to complete all projects currently in develepment Abbott
plans to manage its portfolio of projects to achieve research and
development spend equal to approximately 6 percent to 7 percent
of sales each year Abbott does not regularly accumulate or make
managenent decisions based on the total expenses incurred for

a particular development phase 1n a ghven period
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GOODWILL

At December 31, 2013, goodwill recorded as a result of business
combinations totaled $9 8 billion Goodwill is reviewed for impaur-
ment annually in the third quarter or when an event that could
result in an impairment occurs The results of the last impairment
test indicated that the fair value of each reporting unit was sub-
stantially in excess of 1ts carrying value except for the Medical
Optics umt While the fair value of the Medical Optics business
exceeds its carrying value, extended economic pressure on govern-
ment-reimbursed cataract procedures in Europe and on the globa!
LASIK surgery business as well as longer regulatory approval
trmelines for products currently under development, the integra-
tton of OptuMedica and the negatve impact of foreign currency
movements could resultin a valuation 1n the future where the fair
value of the Medical Optics umit has declined below 1ts carrying
value, thereby triggering the requirement to estimate the implied
fair value of the goodwill and measure for impairment

FINANCIAL CONDITION
CASH FLOW

Net cash from operating activities amounted to $3 3 billion,
$93bitlion and $9 0 billion 1n 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
The decrease in Net cash from operating activities in 2013 was
due to the separation of AbbVie on January 1, 2013 Net cash from
operating activities n 2013 reflects approximately $435 million
of one-time net cash outflows related to the separation of Abbvie
and $724 milhon of contributions to defined benefit pension plans
The income tax component of operating cash flow 1n 2013, 2012
and 2011 includes $427 million, $408 million and $580 nullion,
respectively, of noncash tax benefits related to the favarable
resolution of various tax positions pertaining to prior years and
2013 also includes a $103 mithion tax benefit for the retroactive
impact of US tax law changes, which 1s expected to be realized
in future years Trade accounts payable and other liabilities in
Net cash from operating activities 1n 2012 includes the payment
of approximately $1 5 billion related to a hugation accrual
recorded 1n 2011 related to the business operations of AbbVie
This was partially offset by increases in other habilities, primanly
restructuring reserves

While substantially all cash and cash equivalents at December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 1s considered remvested indefinitely in foreign
subsidianies, Abbott does not expect such remnvestment to affect
its hquidity and capital resources If these funds were needed for
operations m the U S, Abbott would be required to accrue and pay
US income taxes to repatriate these funds Abbott beheves that it
has sufficient sources of hquidity to support its assumption that
the disclosed amount of undistnibuted earmings at December 31,
2013 can be considered to be reinvested indefimitely
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Abbott funded $724 million in 2013, $379 nullion 1n 2012 and
$394 million 1n 2011 to defined benefit pension plans Abbott
expects pension funding of approximately $400 mullion in 2014
for 1ts pension plans, of which approximately $300 oullion relates
te its main domestic pension plans Abbott expects annual cash
flow from operating activities to continue to exceed Abbott's
capital expenditures and cash dividends

DEBT AND CAPITAL

At December 31, 2013 Abbott’s long-term debt rating was A+

by Standard & Paor's Corporation and Al by Moody's Investors
Service Abbortt has readily available financial resources, including
unused lines of credit of $5 0 billion that support commercial
paper borrowing arrangements which expire in 2017

In 2012, Abbott redeemed $77 billton of long-term notes in
preparation for the separation of AbbVie from Abbott and repaid
$1 billion of long-term notes that were due in 2012 In addition,
AbbVie Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of Abbott, issued

$14 7 billien of long-term notes that were guaranteed by Abbott
until AbbVie’s separation from Abbott on January 1, 2013 In 2011,
Abbott repaid $2 0 billion of long-term notes using primanly
short-term borrowings

In October 2008, the board of directors authorized the purchase
of up to $5 billion of Abbott's common shares from time to tume
Under this authornization, 33 ¢ mullion and 370 million shares were
purchased 1n 2013 and 2012 at a cost of approximately $1 2 billion
and $2 2 billion, respectively No additional purchases of common
shares will be made from this authorization In June 2013, the
board of directors authonzed the purchase of up to $20 billion of
Abbott’s common shares from time to time and 10 5 nullion shares
were purchased under this authorization at a cost of $388 nullion
1n 2013 Abbott has indicated that it plans to purchase over

$2 bilhion of additienal ~hares from time to tume 111 2014

Abbott declared dividends of $0 64 per vhare 1n 2013 compared
to $1 67 per share in 2012 Dividends paid were $882 million in
2013 compared to $3 2 billion 1n 2012 The year-over-vear change
in dividends reflects the impact of the separation of AbbVie
January 2012 In October 2013, Abbott announced an increase

1n the company’s quarterly dividend to $0 22 per share from

$0 14 per share, representing an increase of 57 percent This
mcrease took effect with the dividend pard in February 2014 to
shareholders of record at the close of business on January 15, 2014

WORKING CAPITAL

The reduction of cash and cash equivalents from $10 8 bilhon

at December 31, 2012 to $3 5 billion at December 31, 2013 reflects
the transfer of $5 9 billion of cash and cash equivalents to AbbVie
as part of the separation on January 1, 20132 Working capital was
$97 billion at December 31, 2013 and $18 0 billion at December 31,
2012 The decrease in working capital in 2013 was due to the
transfer of approximately $9 billion of working capital to Abbvie
on January 1, 2013 as part of the separation See note 2 - Separation
of AbbVie for additional information
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Substantially all of Abbott’s trade receivables in Italy, Spain,
Portugal, and Greece are with governmental health systems
The collection of outstanding receivables in these countries
held steady or improved in 2013 depending upon the country

As a result, governmental receivables in these four countnes
accounted for approximately I percent of Abbott’s total assets
and 12 percent of total net trade receivables as of December 31,
2013 The latter 1s down from 16 percent as of December 31 2012

With the exception of Greece, Abbott historically has collected
almost all of the outstanding receivables in these countries Abbott
continues to momtor the credit worthiness of customers located
in these and other geographic areas and establishes an allowance
against a trade recervable when it 1s probable that the balance

will not be collected I'n addition to closely monitoring economuc
conditions and budgetary and other fiscal developments in these
countries, Abbott regularly commumcates with its customers
regarding the status of recervable balances, including their pay-
ment plans and obtains positive confirmauon of the validity of the
recewvables Abbott also monitors the potennial for and periodically
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has utilized factoring arrangements to mitigate credit risk
although the receivables included 1n such arrangements have
historically not been a material amount of total outstanding
recewvables If government funding were to become unavailable
in these countries orif significant adverse changes n their
reimbursement practices were to occur, Abbott may not be able
to collect the entire balance

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures of $1 1 lillion 1n 2013, $1 8 billion 1n 2012 and
8§15 billion in 2011 were principally for upgrading and expanding
manufacturing and research and development facilities and equip-
ment 1n various segments, investments 1n information technology,
and laboratory instruments placed with customers The 2013
decrease reflects the separation of AbbVie at the begmning of 2013

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The table below summarizes Abbott's estimated contractual
obhgations as of December 31, 2013

(in mallions) Payments Due By Penod
2019 and
Total 2014 2015-2016 2017-2018 Thereafter
Long-termt debt, tncluding current matunties 3 3397 £ 9 $ 13 $ 2 $3,373
Interest on debt obligations 2977 181 350 349 2,097
Operating lease obligations 628 140 219 131 138
Capitalized auto lease obligations 40 13 27 - —
Purchase commitments (a) 2,295 2,118 158 15 4
Other long-term liabihities 1,272 — 771 354 147
Total {b) $10,609 $2.461 $1,538 $ 851 $5759

{a) Purchase commitments are for purchases made in the normal coutse of business to meet operational and eapital expenditure requirements

{t) Unrccognized tax benefits totaling $1 3 bullion are excluded from the table abave as Abbott 1s unable to reasonably estimate the period of cash setttement wath the respective taxing purhorities on
such items See Note 13 - Taxes an Encome for further details The company has employee benefit obligations consisting of pensions and other pastemployment benefits, including medical and life
which have been excluded from the table A discussion of the company s pension and postrenrement plans including funding maticrs 15 included tn Note 12 - Post-employment Benefeis

6%
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CONTINGENT CBLIGATIONS

Abbott has periodically entered into agreements in the ordinary
course of business, such as assignment of product nights, with
other compames, which has resulted i Abbott becoming second-
anily hable for obligations that Abbott was previously primarily
hable Since Abbott no longer maintawns a business relationship
with the other parties, Abbott 1s unasble to develop an estimate of
the maximum potential amount of future payments, if any, under
these obhgations Based upon past experience, the likelthood of
payments under these agreements 1> remote In addiion, Abbott
periodically acquires a business or product rights in which Abbott
agrees to pay contingent consideration based on attaiming certain
thresholds or based on the occurrence of certain events

LEGISLATIVE ISSUES

Abbott’s primary markets are lughly compeuntive and subject to
substanual government regulations throughout the world Abbott
expects debate to continue over the availability, method of

dehivery, and payment for health care products and services

It 1s nat possible to predict the extent to which Abbott or the
health care industry 1n general might be adversely affected by
these factors in the future A more complete discussion of these
factors is contamned in Item 1, Business, and Item 1A, Risk Factors,
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K

PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995 —
A CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities
Littgation Reform Act of 1995, Abbott cautions investors that

any forward-looking statements or projections made by Abbort,
including these made in this decument, are subjeet to nisks and
uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially
from those projected Economic, competitive, governmental,
technological and other factors that may affect Abbott’s operations
are discussed 1n Item 1A, Risk Factors, to the Annual Report

on Form 10-K
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SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollers in millions excepe per share dara)
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Year Ended December 31 2013 2012(a) 2011(a) 2010(a) 2009(a)
Summary of Operations

Net Sales $ 21,848 21,494 21,407 19,529 16,551
Cost of products seld $ 10,831 10,612 10,901 10,372 9,153
Research & development $ 1452 1,544 1,512 1,230 L,036
Selling. general, and admimstrative $ 6936 7444 7365 6,929 5442
Operating earnings $ 2,629 1,894 1,629 998 920
Interest expense 3 157 347 359 553 525
Interest iIncome $ 67) (59) (65) (256) (288}
Orther (income) expense net (b) $ 18 1,301 99 65 (343)
Earnings from conunuing operations before taxes 5 2521 305 1,236 636 1,026
Taxes on earnings from continuing operations $ 138 {(274) 110 355 51
Earnings from continuing operations 5 2383 579 1,126 281 975
Net earmings $ 2576 5,963 4,728 4,626 5,746
Basic earnings per common share from continuing operations $ 152 036 072 018 063
Basic earnings per commuon share 3 lod 376 303 298 371
Muluted earnings pet common share from continuing operations § 150 036 072 018 063
Diluted earnings per common share 5 162 372 kY 206 369
Financial Position

Working capital $ 9740 18,042 8,289 5,055 10,264
1 ong-term investment securities s 119 274 378 302 1,133
Net property & equipment $ 5905 8,063 7.874 7971 7619
Total assets § 42,953 67,235 60,277 60,574 52,582
Long-tem debt $ 3388 18,085 12,040 12,524 11,266
Shareholders' investment $ 25267 26,813 24,526 22,765 23,187
Book value per share $ 1632 1701 1562 14 53 14 76
Gther Statstics

Gross profit margin % 504 506 491 469 447
Research and development to net sales % 66 72 71 63 63
Net cash from operating activities § 3324 9,314 8,970 8,736 2275
Capital expenditures § 1145 1,795 1492 1015 1,089
Cash dividends declared per common share (¢} $ 064 167 192 176 160
Common shares outstanding (in thousands) 1,548,098 1,576,667 1,570,379 1,546,984 1,551,168
Number of common shareholders 57854 60476 62,939 64,413 67461
Market price per share - lugh (d) 5 3881 3468 2701 2717 2746
Market price per share - low (d) $ 3ie64 2582 2157 2134 1975
Market price per share - close {d) $ 38313 3 34 2691 2292 2583

(a) On January 1, 2013, Abbott completed the separation of AbbVie Inc, which was formed to hold Abbott's research-based proprietary pharmaceuticals
business The hustorical operating results of the research-based proprietary pharmaceuticats business prior to separation are excluded from Earmings
from continuing operattons, Earnings per share from continuing operations and related ratios The discontinued operations related to the research-based
proprictary pharmaceuticals business are included i Net earnings and Basic and Dituted earnings per common share The assets, habilities, and eash

flows of the research-based proprietary pharmaceuticals business are included in the reported balances far periods prior to January 1, 2013 See Note 2 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for additonal information

(b) 2012 includes $1,350 mallion for the net loss on extingutshment of debt

() The decrease 1n the dividend from 2012 to 2013 reflects the impact of the separatton of Abbvie

(d) The 2012 and prior lustoncal share prices have been adjusted to reflect the separation of AbbVie
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